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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

_Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31% March 2019, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as Ind
AS Financial Statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its

loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
~ our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

- The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the corresponding year ended March 31, 2018
included in these financial statements were audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an
un modified opinion on those financial statements on 23" May, 2018.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, as in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the said
order is not applicable to the company.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as

the Act.
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(f)  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification bearing no. G.S.R. 583(6) dated
13th June 2017, amended the provision of section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.
In accordance with the same reporting requirement related to adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting is not applicable to
the Company.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO.

Q.
(o
4]

Q.

Place ; Ahgwe a

Date :] 7019
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Notes Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
a Financial Assets
i. Loans 3 0.50 0.70
b Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 6.92 6.92
Total Non Current Assets ‘ 7.42 7.62
Current Assets
a Financial Assets v
i. Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 2.77 4.42
i .Other Financial Assets 3 - 0.25
b  Current tax Assets (Net) 6 6.21 6.21
¢ Other Current Assets 7 0.77 0.77
' Total Current Assets 9.75 11.65
Total Assets 17.17 19.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
a Equity Share Capital 8 5.00 5.00
b Other Equity 9 (101.74) (101.51)
Total Equity (96.74) (96.51)
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
a Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 10 106.60 106.690
ii.Trade Payables 11 1.10 0.91
iii.Other Financial Liabilities 12 6.21 6.21
b  Other Current Liabilities 13 - 2.06
Total Current Liabilities 113.91 115.77
Total Liabilities 113.91 115.77
Total Equity & Liabilties : 17.17 19.27

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For G. K. Choksi & Co.

Astral Biochem Private Limited
IN:U01407GJ2008PTC0O54506 —

DIN : 00067112 DIN : 03383621
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 16, 2019



ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 -

{Rs. In Lacs)
particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Income 14 - 32.18
Total income - 32.18
Expenses '
Finance cost 15 - 19.64
Other Expenses 16 0.23 12.55
Total Expenses 0.23 32.19
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax (0.23) (0.01)
Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Defererd Tax - -
Profit/(Loss) For the Year {0.23) (0.01)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (0.23) (0.01)
Earnings Per Share: Face Value of Rs. 10/- each 17
Basic (0.46) (0.02)
Diluted (0.46) (0.02)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For G. K. Choksi & Co.

Registration No.: 0101895W

k4

A Vartik R. Choksi
Partner

embership No.: 116743
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 16, 2019

Biochem Private Limited
CIN:U01407GJ2008PTCOSA

) DIN : 00067112
Place : Ahmedabad

. Date : May 16, 2019

DIN : 03383621




ASTRAL BIO CHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019

A Equity share capital (Note 8) (Rs in lacs)
Particulars Amount

Balance at April 1, 2017 5.00
Add: movement during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2018 5.00
Add: movement during the year ‘ -
Balance at March 31, 2019 5.00

B Other Equity (Note 9) {Rs in lacs)

. Other Equity : Total
Particulars . Retained .
Capital Reserve . Other Equity
earnings

Balance at April 1, 2017 43.39 (144.89) (101.50)
Addition/Deletion during the year - - -
Profit for the year ) - (0.01) (0.01)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - (0.01)| - (0.01)
Balance at March 31, 2018 43.39 (144.90) (101.51)
Profit for the year (0.23) (0.23)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - (0.23) (0.23)
Balance at March 31, 2019 43.39 (145.13) (101.74)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For G. K. Choksi & Co.’ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

¥

Director
DIN : 00067112 DIN : 03383621

Piace : Ahmedabad

Date : May 16, 2019

Membership No.: 116743
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 16, 2019



ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Sr particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
No. . 31,2019 31,2018
A. |Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (0.23) (0.01)
Changes in Working Capital:
Incre.a‘se/(Decrease) in Trade Payables, financial liabilities other liabilities and (187) (0.26)
provisions
(increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables, financial assets and other assets 0.45 ‘ (4.96)
Cash generated from operations (1.42) (5.23)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities (A) ' (1.65) (5.23)
B. |Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Sale of Fixed Assets - 441.71
Capital work-in-progress ' - 127.29
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities ( B ) - 569.01
C. [Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Repayment from Long-term borrowings - (166.48)
Repayment from Short-term borrowings : - (399.08)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities ( C) - {565.55)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT ( A+B+C) {(1.65) {1.77)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 6) 4.42 6.1
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Note 6) 2.77 4.42
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
i Non-current Current
Particulars borrowings borrowings Total
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - 106.60 106.60
Cash flows - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - 106.60 106.60

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date )
For G. K. Choksi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Astral
Biochem Private Limited

gistration No.: 0101895W
red Accountants

¢/ Vartik R. Choksi /::‘-\\\
e
S

rtner Director
mbership No.: 116743 i3 DIN : 00067112
Place : Ahmedabad %g_% Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 16, 2019 W’C Date : May 16, 2019
N
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY OVERVIEW:

The Company is a private limited Company incorporated in India and is wholly owned subsidiary of
Astral Poly Technik Limited, which is a listed Company.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 16, 2019.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis using historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place either.

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liabilities or

- In the absence of a principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset and
liabilities.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristic into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share based payment transaction that are within the scope of ind AS 102 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair valued such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or
value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of assets.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1) Level 1 — Quoted (unadJusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
Liabilities.

2) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

'3) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is 5|gmﬁcant to.the fair
value measurement is unobservable.
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Use of Estimates

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates

-and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on
. the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying -assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

Property, plant and equipment

Land is carried at historical cost. Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at actual cost less
accumulated depreciation and net of impairment. The actual cost capitalised includes material
cost, freight, installation cost, duties and taxes and other incidental expenses incurred during the
construction / installation stage.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administration purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. All the direct expenditure related to
implementation including incidental expenditure incurred during the period of implementation of a
project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as Capital work in progress (CWIP) and such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use.

All items of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than land and
properties under construction are charged based on straight line method on an estimated useful
life as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

" The estimated useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed

at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangibleassets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life on a straight line basis over a period
of 5 years.

Transition to Ind AS

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognized as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as a lessee
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as an asset of the Company at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease

payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as the finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve the constant rate of return on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable

to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general
policy on borrowing costs.

Rental expense from operating lease is generally recognized on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessors expected inflationary cost increase, sugh.increases
are recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue.
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognized on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct cost incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognized on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended ‘use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing cost is suspended and charged to statement of Profit and loss during

the extended period when active development of the qualifying asset is interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Earnings per share

A basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been
issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity
shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued
at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares).
Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

Taxation

Tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, based on estimated tax liability computed after
taking credit for allowances and exemption in accordance with the local tax laws. The Company’s

current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. P &
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off
against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT credit is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
Balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic
benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligations. When a provision is measured using the cash flow
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present obligations of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements when an
inflow/ outflow of economic benefits/ loss are probable.
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non-derivative Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are measured at
the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in financial

statements if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Operating Cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification based on operating cycle.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 3Q settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period ‘




ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
1. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

3 LOANS
(Rs. In iacs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1Non Current
Secured and Considered Good
Security Deposits 0.50 0.50
Other Deposits - 0.20
: Total 0.50 0.70
Current
Refund Receivable - 0.25
Total - 0.25
4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
(Rs. In lacs}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred Tax Assets
Brought Forward Loss 6.92 6.92
: Total 6.92 6.92
5  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Rs. In lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash on hand 0.13 0.15
Balances with banks 2.64 4.27
Total 2.77 4.42
6 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
(Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
TDS receivable 6.21 6.21
Total 6.21 6.21
7 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance with Government Authorities 0.77 0.77
0.77 0.77




8 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Rs. In lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2018

Authorised Share Capital

Equity Share Capital

50,000 Equity Shares (P.Y. 50,000 Equity Shares) of Rs.10/-
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Share Capital

Equity Share Capital

50,000 Equity Shares (P.Y. 50,000 Equity Shares) of Rs.10/-
each fully paid up

Total

5.00

5.00

5.00.

5.00

5.00

.5.00

a) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each Share

holder is eligible for one vote per share.

b) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding :

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018
As at beginning of the year/period 50,000 50,000
Add: Issued During the year/period - -
As at end of the year/period 50,000 50,000

¢) The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2019 and as at March

31, 2018 is set out below.

Name of Shareholders

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Astral Poly Technik Limited

No. of Shares 50,000 50,000
- % of Shares Held 100% 100%
Amount (in lacs) 5.00 5.00

d) 50,000 (50,000 as at 31st March, 2018) equity shares of Rs. 10/- fully paid up are held by Parent
Company - Astral Poly Technik Limited jointly with nominees.

9 OTHER EQUITY

(Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 43.39 43.39
Add: During the Year - -
Balance at the end of the year 43.39 43.39
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (144.90) (144.89)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the Year. {(0.23) (0.01)
Balance at the end of the year (145.13) (144.90)
' Total (101.74) (101.51}




10° BORROWINGS

(Rs. In lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars
articu March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Unsecured

Loans and Advances from Related Parties* (Note 18)

Astral Poly Technik Limited - The Holding Company 106.60 106.60
Total 106.60 106.60
*  The loan is repayable on demand.
11  TRADE PAYABLES
(Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Other than Acceptances *
Trade Payables for Service Received 1.10 0.91
Total 1.10 0.91

* There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as on March 31, 2019 (NIL as on March 31, 2018).
This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Smal and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the

basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditor.

12  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Rs. In lacs})
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Others (Payable towards Excess Amount Received) 6.21 6.21
Total 6.21 6.21
13 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
. (Rs. In lacs)
. As at As at
|
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Other Liabilities
Statutory remittances -
Total -

(




14 OTHERINCOME

{Rs. In lacs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Total

32.18

32.18

15  FINANCE COST

(Rs. In lacs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Bank Charges
Interest Expenses * (Note 18)

Total

0.02
19.62

19.64

* Interest Expense of Rs. Nil (P.Y. Rs. 19.61 lacs) pertains to the Related Party - Astral Poly Technik

Limited

16  OTHER EXPENSES

(Rs. In lacs)
. Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Power Expense - 0.48
Rent Expenses - 7.57
Payment to Auditors * 0.20 1.00
Professional Fees - 1.21
Legal Expenses 0.03 0.06
Security Service Charges - 2.22
Other Expenses - 0.01
Total 0.23 12.55
* Payment to Auditors: {Rs. In lacs)
particulars Year ended March | Year ended March

31,2019 31,2018

For Statutory Audit 0.20 1.00

For Other Services - -
0.20 1.00




ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit/ (Loss) for the period attributable to the (0.23) (0.01)
owners of the Company (Rs. In Lacs)
Weighted average number of equity shares 50,000 50,000
outstanding
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (In Rs.) (Face (0.46) {0.02)
Value of Rs. 10/- each)
18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:-
1. Name of Parties and relationships
Sr. | Description of Relationship Names of Related Parties
No. ’
a. | Holding Company/Parent Company Astral Poly Technik Limited
b. | Entities with joint control /Fellow Resinova Chemie Limited
Subsidiaries Seal It Services Ltd - UK
Seat It Services Ltd - USA
c. | Key Management Personnel Mr. Sandeep P. Engineer
' Mr. Kairav S. Engineer
Mr. Saumya S. Engineer
e. | Relatives of Key Management | Mrs. Jagruti S. Engineer
Personnel Mrs. Hansa Engineer
2. Details of related party transactions during the year:
(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1 Unsecured Loan Taken
" | Astral Poly Technik Limited - 38.20
2 Interest on Loan Taken
" | Astral Poly Technik Limited - 19.61
3 Unsecured Loan Paid ‘
" | Astral Poly Technik Limited - 621.40 |
4. | Sale of Assets
Resinova Chemie Limited - 621.40
5. | Reimbursement of Expense
Astral Poly Technik Limited 0.02 -
6. | Paid for Reimbursement of Expense
Astral Poly Technik Limited 0.02 -

3. Details of related party transactions outstanding balances:

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2019 2018
1. | Unsecured Loans :
Astral Poly Technik Limited 106.60 106.60

2. | Payables

Resinova Chemie Limited

6.21° 6.21




19 Financial instruments

1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that
the return to stakeholders through optim

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (

balances) and total equity of the Company.
The company's risk mana

the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising

isation of debt and equity balance.

borrowings as detailed in note 10 off set by cash and bank

gement committee reviews the risk capital structure of the company on semi annual basis. As part
of this review the company considers the cost of capital an

d the risk associated with each class of capital.

Gearing ratio R

) {Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

Debt (note i) 106.60 106.60
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 2.77 4.42
Net debt 103.83 102.18
Equity share capital 5.00 5.00
Other Equity (101.74) (101.51)
Total equity (96.74) (96.51)
Net debt to equity ratio (1.07) (1.06)

Debt is defined as short-term borrowings,
technik Limited.

as described in notes 10. Total debt is due to the holding company i.e. Astral Poly

2 Category-wise classification of financial instruments
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost :
a Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) 2.77 4.42
b  Financial assets (Note 3) 0.50 0.95
: Total 3.27 5.37
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
a Borrowings (Note 10) 106.60 106.60
b Financial liabilities (Note 11) 7.31 7.12
Total 113.91 113.72
In respect of financial instruments, measured at amortised cost, the fair value approximates the amortised cost.
3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly

Company’s financial assets com
The Company’s business activities are expose
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity ri
Company’s approach to managing li
liabilities when they are due, under both normal
damage to the Company’s reputation. ‘
The following table shows the maturity ana
undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying va

prise mainly of cash and cash equivalents,
d to liquidity risk.

sk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligati
quidity is to ensure, as far as possible,

lysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on

of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The

and other financial assets.

ons associated with its financial liabilities. The
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking

contractually agreed
jue as at the Balance Sheet date.

(Rs. in Lacs}

Particulars Carrying amount | less than 1 year 1-5 years Total
As at March 31, 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 106.60 106.60 - 106.60
Financial Liabilities 7.31 7.31 - 7.31
Total 113.91 113.91 - 113.91

As at March 31, 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 106.60 106.60
Financial Liabilities 7.12 7.12

7 EXHS _A13.72 113.72

5 :
=1 /,;,}:E




ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to confirm
with the current year’s classification.

21, The account balances existing at the beginning of the period have been relied upon the audited
financial statements audited by the previous auditor.

As Per our report of even date

For G. K. Choksi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 0101895W Astral Biochem Private Limited

Chartexed Accountants :1401407GJ2008PTC054506

y .

v

CA Vartik R. Choksi . Engineer) av S. Engineer)
Partne Director Director
Membership No.:116743 { DIN: 00067112 DIN: 03383621

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 16,2019 o Date: Mayl£+,2019
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RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Notes As at As at
. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3(A) 14,211.72 12,485.80
(b) Capital work-in-progress 322.84 847.23
(c) Goodwill 3(B) 9,713.21 13,390.93
(d} Other intangible assets 3(B) 63.13 82.04
(e} Financial assets
(i) Loans 24.26 18.68
(i) Other financial assets ) 93.59 66.90
(f) Other non-current assets 6 135.27 67.04
Total non-current assets 24,564.02 26,958.62
Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 7,048.69 7,029.70
(b) Financial assets
(i} Trade receivables 8 7,445.10 6,128.10
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2,829.79 386.55
(iii) Other Balances with Banks 10 13.35 13.45
(iv) Loans 4 27.30 19.06
(v) Other financial assets 5 20.63 30.48
(c) Current tax assets 11 269.45 528.77
(d) Other current assets 6 393.97 758.02
Total current assets 18,048.28 14,894.13
Total assets 42,612.30 41,852.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 29.39 29.39
(b) Other equity 13 33,769.02 32,362.23
Total equity 33,798.41 32,391.62
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{(a) Financial liabilities - Borrowings 14 2,358.37 2,596.34
{b) Provisions 15 154.25 113.64
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 16 614.07 332.76
Total non-current liabilities 3,126.69 3,042.74
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Trade payables 17
a total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - - -
small enterprises
b total outstanding -dues of creditors other than 4,023.56 5,145.37
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii} Other financial liabilities 18 628.97 674.43
(b) Other current liabilities 19 801.63 334.48
{c) Provisions 15 115.55 85.80
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 117.49 178.31
Total current liabilities 5,687.20 6,418.39
Total liabilities 8,813.89 9,461.13
Total equity and liabilities 42,612.30 41,852.75

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP

. . "
b P R,

Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner

Director

Membership No.: 11075
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 20, 2019

DIN : 00067112
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 20, 2019

DIN : 03383621



RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Revenue from operations 21 43,700.49 39,074.18
Other income 22 442.99 194.69
Total 44,143.48 39,268.87
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 27,957.23 23,544.58
Purchase of stock-in-trade 24 30.45 2543
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in- 25 48.29 255.76
progress
Employee benefits expense 26 3,342.40 2,654.10
Finance costs 27 105.69 271.52
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 4,470.50 4,195.89
Excise duty on sale of goods - 1,211.01
Other expenses 29 6,016.15 4,254.91
Total 41,970.71 36,413.20
Profit before tax 2,172.77 2,855.67
Tax expense 30
a) Current tax 482.70 610.87
b) Mat Credit Entitlement (467.70) (628.45)
c) Deferred tax 749.01 972.84
Total Tax expense 764.01 955.26
Profit for the year 1,408.76 1,900.41
Other comprehensive income
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans (1.97) 8.91
Total other comprehensive income (1.97) 8.91
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,406.79 1,909.32
Earnings per equity share 31
- Basic (inRs.) 479.34 646.63
- Diluted (in Rs.) 479.34 646.63

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003
Chartered Accountants

Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No.: 110759
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 20, 2019

DIN : 00067112
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 20, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,,

DIN : 03383621




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Sr . Year ended Year ended
Particulars
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A. |Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 2,172.77 2,855.67
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 4,470.50 4,195.89
Bad Debts occurred 0.48 0.02
Finance Costs 105.69 271.52
Provision for doubtful debts - 80.00
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 12.34 10.69
Gain On sale of Current Investments (21.10) (3.87)
Interest Income (0.95) (1.17)
Net Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (115.59) 68.98
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 6,624.14 7,477.73
Changes in working capital:
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade Payables, financial liabilities other liabilities and provisions {445.45) 657.40
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (18.99) (738.80)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables, financial assets and other assets {991.01) (2,251.78)
Cash generated from operations 5,168.69 5,144.55
Income taxes paid (284.22) (433.98)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities (A ) 4,884.47 4,710.57
B. [Cash flow from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment 19.77 27.59
Capital Expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {(2,206.34) (5,525.24)
Gain on sale of Current Investments 21.10 3.87
Interest received 0.13 0.21
Loans received/(paid) (13.82) 10.75
Increase/(Decrease) in other balances with banks 0.10 (0.11)
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities ( B ) (2,179.06) (5,482.93)
C. |Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of Short term Borrowings - (1,014.52)
Repayment of Long term Borrowings (160.00) (40.00)
Proceeds From Long Term Borrowing - 2,321.34
Finance Cost (102.09) (269.11)
Net Cash flow used in Financing Activities ( C) (262.09) 997.71
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B+C) 2,443.32 225.35
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 9) 386.55 161.15
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash (0.08) 0.05
equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year {Note 9) 2,829.79 386.55
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Non-current Current Total
Balance as at March 31, 2018 2,756.34 - 2,756.34
Cash flows (237.97) - (237.97)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 2,518.37 - 2,518.37

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP o

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 324982€E/E300003
Chartered Accountants

Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No.: 110759
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 20, 2019

Managing Director
DIN : 00067112
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 20, 2019

. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

airav S. Engineer)

Director
DIN : 03383621



RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019

A Equity share capital {Note 12) {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Amount
Balance at April 1, 2017 29.39
Add: movement during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2018 29.39
Add: movement during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2019 29.39
Other Equity (Note 13) (Rs. in Lacs)
Other Equity
particulars Securl.tles Retained Total .
premium R Other Equity
earnings
reserve

Balance at April 1, 2017 30,477.12 (24.21) 30,452.91
Profit for the year - 1,900.41 1,900.41
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 8.91 8.91
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,909.32 1,909.32
Balance at March 31, 2018 30,477.12 1,885.11 32,362.23
Profit for the year - 1,408.76 1,408.76
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - (1.97) (1.97)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,406.79 1,406.79
Balance at March 31, 2019 30,477.12 3,291.90 33,769.02

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003
Chartered Accountants

Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No.: 110759
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 20, 2019

Managing Director
DIN : 00067112
Place : Ahmedabad

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
‘= Resinova Chemie Limited

Director

S.

Engineer)

DIN : 03383621

Date : May 20, 2019




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW:-

Resinova Chemie Limited (RCL) is engaged in manufacturing of various types of Adhesives and is a Limited
Company. The Company is Subsidiary of Astral Poly Technik Limited (APL), a listed Company.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 20, 2019.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:-
a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter read with
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended. All accounting policies are consistently applied
except as given below:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' effective April 1, 2017.
Application of Ind AS 115 does not have any significant impact on retained earnings as at April 1, 2017
and financial results of the Company.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis using historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either.

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liabilities or

- Inthe absence of a principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset and liabilities.

in estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristic into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share based payment transaction
that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
valued such as net realizable value in ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of assets.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
hi\’rfxﬁeasurement is directly or indirectly observable.
éilg — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant té) the fair v
ement is unobservable. -




b)

c)

d)

e)

Use of Estimates

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of
financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost on weighted average basis and net realizable value after providing
for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes cost of purchase and other
expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost includes all
charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including receiving charges, octroi and other levies and
transit insurance. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities
of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the
effects of variable consideration, if any.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the scof.time is required before payment of the consideration is due).




f)

g)

Interest Income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Land is carried at historical cost. Properties, Plant & Equipment are stated at actual cost less accumulated
depreciation and net of impairment, if any. The actual cost capitalised includes material cost, freight,
installation cost, duties and taxes and other incidental expenses incurred during the construction /
installation stage.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administration purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss, if any. All the direct expenditure related to implementation
including incidental expenditure incurred during the period of implementation of a project, till it is
commissioned, is accounted as Capital work in progress (CWIP) and such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

All items of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than land and properties
under construction are charged based on straight line method on an estimated useful life as prescribed in
Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year is
provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between-the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the
statement/of /rﬁfj;t ind-loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life on a straight line basis over a period of 5
years except Assets like Goodwill arising out of Scheme of Amalgamation, which is amortized over 7 years
since in the opinion of the management the benefits will be available for that period.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as a lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as an asset of the Company at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as the finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve the constant rate of return on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs.

Rental expense from operating lease is generally recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessors expected inflationary cost increase, such increases are recognised in the
year in which such benefits accrue.

Company as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in
the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

Foreign Currency Transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (INR) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.
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Employee Benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and
compensated absences.

Defined Contribution Plan:
The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plans and are
charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are
rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the return on plan
assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to in
the statement of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

1) Service costs comprising current service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and settlements;
and
2) Netinterest expense or income

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service.
These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Share based payment:

Equity settled share based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share
based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing cost is suspended and charged to statement of Profit and loss during the
extended period when active development of the qualifying asset is interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Earnings per share

A basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed
to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.

Taxation
Tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities, based on estimated tax liability computed after taking credit
for allowances and exemption in accordance with the local tax laws. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the exten “that:it.is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
covered.




Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit paid in accordance with the tax laws in
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT credit is recognised as deferred tax asset in the Balance sheet when
the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the
asset will be realised.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligations. When a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present obligations of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements when an
inflow/ outflow of economic benefits/ loss are probable.

Non-derivative Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of.the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
dir n.the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are measured at the
proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in financial statements if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts/options and interest
rate swaps.

The use of foreign currency forward contracts / options is governed by the Company’s policies approved
by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such financial derivatives
consistent with the Company’s risk management strategy. The counter party to the Company’s foreign
currency forward contracts is generally a bank. The Company does not use derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

Profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of a forward exchange contract is recognised as income or
as expense in the period in which such cancellation or renewal occurs.

Impairment

Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The
Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/or all trade receivables that do
not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured
at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and Equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment Ioss If any such mdlcatlon exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
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amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating unit for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset {or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Operating Cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification based on operating cycle.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
1. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Business Combination
The Company has opted to claim exemption under Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of indian Accounting
Standards” and decided not to apply Ind AS 103 “Business Combination” retrospectively for past Business
Combinations. Further the Company for applicability of Scheme of amalgamation post application of Ind
As, the existing practice to amortize goodwill over the useful life has been continued instead to test for
impairment as required by Ind AS 101.




s} Critical accounting judgeménts and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing as material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within next financial year.

i.  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
As described in Note 2(f), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset at the end of each reporting period. During the
current financial year, the management determined that there were no changes to the useful lives
and residual he property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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4 LOANS

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018
Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and Advances to Employees 24.26 18.68
Total 24.26 18.68
Current
{Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and Advances to Employees 27.30 19.06
Total 27.30 19.06
5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits 93.59 66.90
Total 93.59 66.90
Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits 12.02 20.66
Interest Accrued on loans and deposits 3.29 2.47
Other Receivable 5.32 7.35
Total 20.63 30.48
6 OTHER ASSETS
(Rs. in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Non-current
Prepaid Expenses 23.57 2.01
Capital Advances 111.70 65.03
Total 135.27 67.04
Current
Prepaid Expenses 241.47 198.68
Balances with Government authorities 84.32 455.85
Advances to Suppliers 68.18 103.49
Total 393.97 758.02
7 INVENTORIES (atlower of cost or net realisable value)
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Raw Materials 3,248.58 3,186.37
Work-in-Progress 706.69 520.38
Stock In Trade - 129.04
Finished Goods 2,174.42 2,279.98
Packing Materials 861.17 870.19
Stores & Spares 57.83 43.74
Total 7,048.69 7,029.70
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good 7,445.10 6,128.10
Unsecured, credit impaired 84.70 84.70
Less : Allowance for expected credit loss (84.70) (84.70)
Total 7,445.10 6,128.10
Break-up for trade receivables: {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Trade receivables from other than related parties 7,445.10 5,278.35
Receivables from related parties (Note 35) - 849.75
Total 7,445.10 6,128.10
Notes :

1 The credit period ranges from 30 days to 180 days.

2 Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually. There are no
customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivable as at March 31,2019 (as at
March 31, 2018 : Rs.1,134.91 Lacs is due from two customer). The credit risk in respect of these customers
is mitigated by additional security cheque.

3 In determining the allowances for credit impaired trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision
matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward
looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are
due and rates used in the provision matrix.

4 Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 84.70 4.70
Add : Provision during the year - 80.00
Balance at the end of the year 84.70 84.70
9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Rs. In lacs)
. As at As at March 31,
Particulars
March 31, 2019 2018
Cash on Hand 7.57 5.38
Balance With Banks in current accounts 2,822.22 381.17
Total 2,829.79 386.55
10 OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS
{Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
In Deposit Accounts 13.35 13.45
Total 13.35 13.45
11 CURRENT TAX ASSETS
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Taxes Receivable 269.45 528.77
Total 269.45 528.77




12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Authorised Share Capital

57,50,000 (As at March 31,2018 : 57,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Share Capital

2,93,895 (As at March 31,2018 : 2,93,895) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

fully paid up

Total

575.00 575.00
29.38 29.39
29.39

29.39

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each Share holder is

eligible for one vote per share and are entitled to dividend as and when declared. All shares rank equally

with regard to the Company's residual assets after distribution of all preferential amounts.

b) Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the

reporting period :

Particulars No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs
Balance as at April 1, 2017 2,93,895 29.39
Add: Shares Issued - -
Balance as at April 1, 2018 2,93,895 29.39
Add: Shares Issued - -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 2,93,895 29,39
c) Details of share held by the shareholder holding more than 5% shares :
Name of Shareholders Asat Asat
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Astral Poly Technik Limited {Holding Company)
No. of Shares 2,86,385 2,86,395
% of Shares Held 97.45 97.45
13 OTHER EQUITY
(Rs. in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 30,477.12 30,477.12
Balance at the end of the year 30,477.12 30,477.12
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,885.11 (24.21)
Add: Profit for the Year 1,408.76 1,500.41
Add: Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of (1.97) 8.91
defined benefit obligation
Balance at the end of the year 3,291.90 1,885.11
Total 33,769.02 32,362.23

Notes
a Nature and purpose of Reserve
Securities premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium
Reserve. This reserve is available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

2013.
Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general

~dividénds or other distributions paid to shareholders.




14 BORROWINGS

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Non-current
Secured - at amortised cost

Term Loans From Banks 600.00 760.00
Less: Current maturity of long term loans (Note 18) 160.00 160.00
440.00 600.00

Unsecured - at amortised cost
Buyers Credit 1,918.37 1,996.34
1,918.37 1,996.34
Total 2,358.37 2,596.34

Notes:

a) Refer Note 36 for information about liquidity risk.

b
) (Note No. 18)

Amount stated in Current maturity is disclosed under the head of "Other Financial Liabilities (Current)"

c) Term Loans are Secured by way of first charge, in respect of Fixed Assets, both present and future, and
second charge on entire current assets of the Company both present and future.Rate of Interest for Rupee

Term Loan ranges from 8 to 11% .

Kotak Bank Term Loan of Rs.600.00 Lacs (as at March 31, 2018 : Rs. 760.00 Lacs) repayable within 45
1 Months (i.e. by December 2022} including initial moratorium period of twelve months from the date of first

disbursement in twenty quarterly equal instalments.

d} Buyers Credit - Rate of Interest for Buyer's Credit ranges from 0.50% to 1.50% .
1 HSBC Bank Buyers Credit of Rs. 1,918.37 Lacs (as at March 31, 2018: Rs. 1,996.34 Lacs) Repayable by

December 2020.

15 PROVISIONS

(Rs. in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Non-current
Provision for Employee Benefits 154.25 113.64
Total 154.25 113.64
Current
Provision for Employee Benefits 115.55 85.80
Total 115.55 85.80
16 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
(Rs. in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,206.80 2,243.10
Deferred Tax Assets (1,592.73) (1,910.34)
Total 614.07 332.76
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) in relation to :
(Rs. in Lacs)
. As at Recognised in As at
Particulars
April 1, 2017 profitand Loss | March 31, 2018
Property, plant and equipment 2,000.89 242.21 2,243.10
Unabsorbed Depreciation (1,780.76) 785.80 (994.96)
Provision for doubtful trade receivables (1.55) (27.76) (29.31)
Compensated absences (65.81) (27.41) (93.22)
MAT credit Entitlement (164.40) (628.45) {792.85)
Total (11.63) 344.39 332.76
(Rs. in Lacs)
R As at Recognised in As at
Particulars .
April 1, 2018 profit and Loss March 31, 2019
Property, plant and equipment 2,243.10 (36.30) 2,206.80
Unabsorbed Depreciation (994.96) 992.80 (2.16)
Unabsorbed Scientific Research - (172.11) (172.11)|;
Provision for doubt/{ul«fié;d (29.31) (0.28) (29.59)} .
Compensated abé’énéé’ (93.22) (35.10) (128.32)} -
‘ {792.85) (467.70) (1,260.55)
Total 332.76 281.31 614.07




17 TRADE PAYABLES

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
a  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total - R
b Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Operational Buyers Credit 751.52 541.30
Due to others 3,272.04 4,604.07
Total 4,023.56 5,145.37
Note:

a Information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditor.

b Refer Note 36 for information about credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk of Trade payables.

18 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings (Note 14) - 160.00 160.00
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 4.65 5.48
interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.78 2.35
Payable for capital goods 61.14 213.30
Others 396.40 293.30
Total 628.97 674.43
19 OTHER LIABILITIES
(Rs. in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current
Statutory dues 720.33 256.32
Advance received from Customers 81.30 78.16
) Total 801.63 334.48
20 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
: {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Income tax payable (net of advance payment of tax) 117.49 178.31
. . Total 117.49 178.31




21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Rs. in Lacs)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from contract with customers 43,462.78 38,894.52
Other operating revenues 237.71 179.66
Total 43,700.49 39,074.18

Note : The revenue from operations (Gross) is inclusive of excise duty and exclusive of GST, as applicable, in above

disclosure. If the same had been shown as inclusive of both or net of excise and net of GST, the Revenue from

Operations would appear as under:

(Rs. in Lacs)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from Operations (Gross of Excise and GST) 51,978.97 45,081.00
Less: Excise Duty/GST- 8,278.48 7,217.83
Revenue from Operations (Net of Excise and GST) 43,700.49 37,863.17

Note : The Company mainly deals into adhesive products and hence, no disaggregation of revenue is provided. Other

information relating to contract balances, i.e. Trade Receivables, is stated in note no.8.

22 OTHER INCOME

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Interest Income comprises:

From Banks on deposits 0.95 1.17
From Others - 9.18
Profit on Sale of Current Investments (Net) 21.10 3.87
Foreign exchange gains (Net) 167.68 102.78
Miscellaneous Income 253.26 77.69
Total 442.99 194.69
23 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
{Rs. in Lacs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inventories at the beginning of the year 3,186.37 2,336.63
Add: Purchases 23,106.18 19,831.66
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 3,248.58 3,186.37
Cost of Material Consumed 23,043.97 18,981.92
Inventories at the beginning of the year 870.19 73%.07
Add: Purchases 4,904.24 4,693.78
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 861.17 870.19
Cost of Packing Material Consumed 4,913.26 4,562.66
Total 27,957.23 23,544.58
24 PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
{Rs. in Lacs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Solutions 30.45 25.43
Total 30.45 25.43




25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

{Rs. in Lacs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inventories At the end of the year
Finished Goods 2,174.42 2,279.98
Work-in-progress 706.69 520.38
Stock In Trade - 129.04
2,881.11 2,929.40
Inventories At the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 2,279.98 2,532.49
Work-in-progress 520.38 458.93
Stock In Trade 129.04 193.74
2,929.40 3,185.16
Net {Increase) / Decrease 48.29 255.76
26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Rs. in Lacs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars g
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries and wages 3,013.29 2,386.38
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note No. 33) 223.29 197.42
Staff welfare Expenses 105.82 70.30
Total 3,342.40 2,654.10
27 FINANCE COSTS
(Rs. in Lacs)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Interest Expenses on

Working capital and term loans 83.22 168.74

Others 1.87 12.77

Other Borrowing Costs 20.60 13.30
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs - 76.71
Total 105.69 271.52

28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
(Rs. in Lacs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 3) 773.87 502.00
Amortisation on Intangible assets (Note 3) 3,696.63 3,693.89
Total 4,470.50 4,195.89




29 OTHER EXPENSES

(Rs. in Lacs)
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Consumption of Stores and Spares 170.79 171.89
Power and Fuel 565.50 480.25
Rent * (Note 35) 208.56 260.00
Repairs Expenses 189.41 134.72
Insurance Expenses 40.53 25.34
Rates and Taxes 2.52 45.79
Royalty Expense 302.37 244.23
Communication Expenses 151.86 83.83
Travelling Expenses 759.01 614.49
Factory and Other Expenses 58.11 48.18
Printing and Stationary Expenses 14.19 12.10
Freight and Forwarding 1,143.81 1,012.25
Sales Promotions 2,148.11 833.51
Directors Sitting Fees 1.50 1.50

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Note 34 & 35) 18.56 -
Security Service Charges 61.71 50.04
Legal and Professional 95.32 93.03
Payments to Auditors ** 5.25 5.25
Bad Debts Written Off 0.48 0.02
Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables - 80.00
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 12.34 10.69
Other Expenses 66.22 47.80
Total 6,016.15 4,254.91

*

The Company is lessee under various operating leases under which rental expenses for the year was Rs. 208.56

Lacs (Previous year: Rs. 260.00 Lacs). The Company has not executed any non-cancellable lease agreement.

PAYMENT TO AUDITORS (EXCLUDING SERVICE TAX AND GST)

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

To Statutory Auditors **
For statutory audit
) Total

5.25

5.25

5.25

5.25




30 TAXEXPENSES

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Current tax
In respect of the current year
Current Tax
MAT Credit Entitlement
In respect of earlier years

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year

467.70 628.45
(467.70) (628.45)
15.00 (17.58)
15.00 {17.58)
749.01 972.84
749.01 972.84

Reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

profit before income taxes is summarised below :

(Rs. in Lacs)
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit before tax 2,172.77 2,855.67
Income tax expense @34.944% (FY 2017-18 : 34.608%) 759.25 988.29
Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible / (taxable} in
calculating taxable income :
Effect of allowances (10.24) (15.45)
Total 749.01 972.84
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 15.00 (17.58)
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss 764.01 955.26

The Company's weighted average tax rates for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 were 35.16 % and

33.45%, respectively:-




31. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit for the peri ttributable to the owners of the
Coom:)ar?y (tRS. IF; Laoc‘:_)a © 1,408.76 1,900.41
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 2,93,895 2,93,895
Nominal Value per shares (Rs.) 10 10
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share {In Rs.) 479.34 646.63

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS NOT PROVIDED FOR:

33.

(Rs. In Lacs)

Sr. | Particulars As at As at
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Contingent Liabilities

1 | Letters of Credits for Purchases 822.35 747.09

2 | Other Contingent Liabilities for Statutory Matters 72.11 74.15
Commitments

1 | Capital Contracts remaining to be executed (Net of 433.99 268.70

Advances)

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated
28th February, 2019. The company belives that the impact will not be material. The company will
make necessary adjustments on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determined only on receipt of judgments /
decisions pending at various forums / authorities.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

The disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan:

Amount towards Defined Contribution Plan have been recognized under “Contribution to Provident
and Other funds” in Note No. 26, Rs. 129.84 Lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 110.02 Lacs).

Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has defined benefit plans for gratuity to eligible employees, contributions for which are
made to Life Insurance Corporation of India, who invests the funds as per IRDA guidelines. The details
of these defined benefit plans-recognised in the financial statements are as under:

General Description of the Plan:

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees, which
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination
of employment, of an amount based on the respective employees salary and the tenure of
employmen




a) Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows :

{Rs. In Lacs)
Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Obligations at the beginning of the year 216.35 192.07
Current service cost 38.63 34.12
Past Service cost - 4.08
Interest cost 17.01 14.71
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 0.90 -
Actuarial (gain) / loss — due to change in financial 3.27 (5.42)
assumptions '

Actuarial (gain) / loss — due to change in demographic (0.73) -
assumptions

Actuarial (gain) / loss- due to experience adjustments (3.90) (6.64)
Benefits paid (16.81) (15.83)
Benefits paid directly by the employer - (0.74)
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 254.72 216.35

b) Movement in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :
(Rs. In Lacs)
Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value 45.66 58.20
Interest Income 3.59 4.46
Return on plant assets excluding interest income {3.33) (3.17)
Contributions from the employer 2.20 2.00
Benefits paid (16.81) (15.83)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 31.31 45.66

c) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entities obligation in respect of defined

benefit pian is as follows :

{Rs. In Lacs)

Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 254.72 216.35
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (31.31) (45.66) |
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 223.41 170.69




d) Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of the defined benefits plans are as

e)

)

g)

follows :
{Rs. In Lacs)
Gratuity
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current service cost 38.63 34.12 |
Net interest expense 13.42 10.25
Past service cost - 4.08
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the 52.05 48.45
Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial {(gains) / losses on obligation for the period {1.37) {12.06)
Return on plant assets, excluding interest income 3.33 3.17
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other 1.96 (8.89)
Comprehensive Income
Total 54.01 39.56

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the Employee
benefits expense line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability/ asset is included in Other Comprehensive Income.

Investment details of plan assets:

To fund the obligations under the gratuity plan, Contributions are made to Life Insurance Corporation

_ of India, who invests the funds as per IRDA guidelines.

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year ended March 31, 2019 as follows:
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

As at March 31

2019 12.76
2020 15.45 7.09
2021 15.26 9.46
2022 14.12 8.35
2023 13.50 7.53
Thereafter 632.08 686.73

Sensitivity analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount
rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant

{Rs. In Lacs)
Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of Discounting (23.59) {(24.33)
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of Discounting 27.78 29.24
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of salary Increase 28.42
Delta effect of <1%-change in the rate of salary increase - A (24.03)
Delta effect'of +1% change in the rate of employee turnovefe-| 1.58
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of employee turnover:/ (1.93)




The sensitivity analysis presented above may'not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one

another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
obligation has been calculated using “Projected Unit Credit” method at the end of the reporting period
which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in

Balance Sheet.

There were no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from

prior years.

The Company expects to make a contribution of Rs. 223.41 lacs (as at March 31, 2018: Rs. 170.69 lacs)

to the defined benefit plans during the next financial year.

h) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :

34.

Gratuity
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
| Discount Rate 7.76% 7.86%
Expected return on plan assets 7.76% 7.86%
Annual Increase in Salary Costs 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee turnover For service 4
years and below
7.09% p.a. For 2.00%
service 5 years
and above 4.00%
p.a.
Mortality Tables Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08)

Future Salary increases are based on long term average salary rise expected taking into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the
employee market. Future Separation & mortality rates are obtained from relevant data of Life

Insurance Corporation of India.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE:

The gross amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities during the year as per the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounts to Rs.
18.47 Lacs (Previous year : Rs. Nil). The revenue expenditure charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
_inrespect of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities undertaken during the year is Rs. 18.56 Lacs

(Previous year:Rs

ind has been paid.




35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

1. Name of the related parties and their relationships :

Sr,
No.

Description of Relationship

Name of Related Parties

a.

Holding/Parent Company

Astral Poly Technik Limited

b.

Entities with joint control /Fellow Subsidiaries

Astral Biochem Private Limited
Seal IT Services Limited - UK
Seal IT Services Limited — USA
Astral Charitable Trust

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel
are able to exercise significant influence

Kairav Chemicals Limited
Kairamya Journeys LLP
Parikh Resins Limited
Saumya Polymers LLP

Key Managerial Personnel / Directors

Mr. Sandeep Engineer {Managing Director)
Mr. Vijay Parikh (Joint Managing Director
upto 20.11.2018)

Mr. Rajesh Dwivedi (Whole Time Director)
Mr. Kairav Engineer (Director)

Mrs. Monica Kanuga (Director)
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36 Financial instruments

1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt {(borrowings as detailed in notes 14 and 18 off set by cash and
bank balances) and total equity of the Company.
The company's risk management committee reviews the risk capital structure of the company on semi annual basis. As

part of this review the company considers the cost of capital and the risk associated with each class of capital.

Gearing ratio
(Rs. in Lacs)

As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Debt (note i) 2,518.37 2,756.34
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 2,829.79 386.55
Net debt - 2,369.79
Equity share capital 29.39 29.39
Other Equity 33,769.02 32,362.23
Total equity 33,798.41 32,391.62
Net debt to equity ratio - 7.32%

i Debtis defined as long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings and current maturities of long term borrowings as
described in notes 14 and 18.

2 Category-wise classification of financial instruments

(Rs. in Lacs)
As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
a Cash and cash equivalents {Note 9 and 10) 2,843.14 399.99
b Financial assets (Note 4,5 and 8) 7,610.88 6,263.22
Total 10,454.02 6,663.21
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
a Borrowings (Note 14 and 18) 2,518.37 2,756.34
b Financial liabilities {Note 17 and 18) 4,492.53 5,659.80
Total 7,010.90 8,416.14

In respect of financial instruments, measured at amortised cost, the fair value approximates the amortised cost.

3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company'’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The
Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans,
trade receivables and other financial assets.

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely market risk (including currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. -

The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk
management framework who are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the
changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee of the
al audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
.reported to the audit committee.

E [ dEDspp




A MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

The Company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of

financial instruments:
- currency risk;
- interest rate risk

i Currencyrisk

The Company'’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The
Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

(in Lacs)
As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Liabilities (Foreign currency)
In US Dollars (USD) 15.96 20.51
In Euro (EUR) 24.85 24.73
Assets (Foreign currency)
In Euro (EUR) - 0.17
{Rs. in Lacs)
As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Liabilities (INR)
In US Dolfars (USD) 1,103.84 1,336.54
In Euro {EUR) 1,929.42 1,998.11
Assets (INR)
In Euro (EUR) - 13.40

Derivative instruments:

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations
relating to certain firm commitments and forecasted transactions. The use of foreign currency forward contracts is
governed by the Company’s strategy approved by the Board of Directors, which provide principles on the use of such
forward contracts consistent with the Company’s Risk Management Policy. The Company does not use forward
contracts for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to the currency : USD and Euro.

The following table details, Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the rupee against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. This is
‘mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding not hedged on receivables and payables in the Company at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in the profit and equity where the rupee strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5%
weakening of the rupee against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit and equity, and
the balances below would be negative.

(Rs. in Lacs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Increase in exchange rate by 5% (151.66) (166.06)
Decrea sxchange rate by 5% 151.66 166.06




The Company, in accordance with its risk management policies and procedures, enters into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage its exposure in foreign exchange rate variations. The counter party is generally a bank. These
contracts are for a period between one day and five years. The above sensitivity does not include the impact of foreign
currency forward contracts and option contracts which largely mitigate the risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow with respect to interest payments on borrowing will fluctuate
because of change in market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligation with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Increase/ Effect on
Particulars decrease in profit
basis points before tax
As at March 31, 2019 100 bps 25.18
As at March 31, 2018 100 bps 27.56

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to
the Company. The Company uses its own trading records to evaluate the credit worthiness of its customers. The
Company’s exposure are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded, are spread
amongst approved counter parties (refer note 8 - Trade receivable).

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-
term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractually agreed
undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date.

{Rs. in Lacs)

i ore than 5
Particulars Carrying Less than1 1-5 years More than Total
amount year years

As at March 31, 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities .
Borrowings 2,518.37 160.00 2,358.37 - 2,518.37

Financial Liabilities 4,492.53 4,492.53 - - 4,492.53
Total 7,010.90 4,652.53 2,358.37 - 7,010.90

As at March 31, 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 2,756.34 160.00 2,596.34 - 2,756.34

Financial Liabilities 5,659.80 5,659.80 - - 5,659.80
~Total 8,416.14 5,819.80 2,596.34 .- 8,416.14




37. Department of Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR), Ministry of Science and Technology,

Government of India, has accorded approval for In-house research and development centre of the
company situated at First Floor, Block no. 2221/1, Ms. Shah Alloys, Santej Nasmed Road , Gandhinagar
, Which has been put to use in April 2018. Following is the break up of revenue and capital expenditure
incurred on approved R&D unit as certified by the management for the year ending as on 31st March
2019. Expenses disclosed under the respective notes to accounts are inclusive of expenditure for
research and development.

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Year ended
March 31,2019
A Revenue Expenditure
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 65.21
Contribution to Provident and other fund 2.53
Raw Material & Component Consumed 2.47
Other Expense 10.04
Total (A) 80.25
B Capital Expenditure
Office Building 187.49
Plant & Machinery 71.05
Office Equipments 1.60
Computer 5.79
Furniture & Fixtures 44.67
Total (B) 310.60
Total Expenditure on research & development (A+B) 390.85

38. SEGMENT REPORTING:

40.

The Company is engaged mainly in production of Adhesive Solution and as such this is the only
reportable business segment as per Indian Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (IND AS — 108).
There are no Geographical Segments as export turnover is not significant in respect of total turnover.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

The below amendments have also became effective for the Company from financial year beginning April
1, 2018. However, the management has evaluated and determined that the adoption of these
amendments will not have any material impact on the consolidated financial statements since there are
no such transactions or the Company’s existing policies are aligned to these amendments:

1. Amendment to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes — regarding recognition of deferred tax assets on unrealised

losses

Applying Appendix B of Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment to Ind AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendment to Ind AS 40 Investment Property - regarding transfer of investment property

Amendment to Ind AS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities — regarding disclosure
ents

U b wN




Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 — Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including
appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS
116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting
for finance leases under Ind AS 17. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company intends to adopt these standards from 1 April 2019. As the Company does not have any
material leases, therefore the adoption of this standard is not likely to have a material impact in its
Financial Statements.

41. The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to confirm with
the current year’s classification.

As per report of even date

ForSRBC& CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Resinova Chemie Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003D' . ?A4295GJ2009PLC0O58120

Chartered Accountants

Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner [
Membership No.: 110759 |

“DIN: 00067112 DIN: 03383621

Place: Ahmedabad Rt Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 20, 2019 Date: May 20, 2019
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Seal It Services Limited

Strategic report
Year ended 31 March 2019

Principal activity and review of the business
The principal activity of the Group during the period was the manufacture and supply of bullding
products and building chemicals.

The resulis of the Group for the year, as set out on pages 8 and 10, show a profit before taxation of
£RSG BO4 (2018. £126,513). The equity afirbutable o owners of the parent company totaliag
£3,637,368 (2018: £2,844 306},

The directors gre confident that the Group will confinue 1o show turnocver growth in the coming year
There has bean significant investment in new plant and facilities during the year, which will allow the
Group to service the increased demand fos ibs products.

Alongside a focus on increasing turnover, cost management remains a key focus of the directars,
aleng with stringent cash management and the management of credit risk.

Key performance indicators
The directors prepare and monitor key performance indicators on @ monthly basis. The key metrics
that are produced include:

2018 2018
Turnower E21,682,410 E17.265.259
Trade Recaivable days 65 Ta

The perod under review has seen improvements acrass most areas of the business, and the focus of
the board remains on satting challenging targets lo maasure parformance.

Risk management

The board constantly monitors and reacts to the risks considered 1o be important to the future of the
business. The Group purchases raw materials in forelgn currency with any fluctuations potentiaily
adversaly affecting the margins of the business i not managed properly. To mitigate this risk, the
Group, from time fo time, enter into forward contracts for the purchase of foreign currency to match
profected future lablites, This has managed to protect margins in the year under review. The
relationship of sterfing io the foreign currencies where the Group has exposure, i monitored daily

Health and safety is paramount to the business, especialy in a manufacturing envircnment. The
directors have carmed out what they believe to be all necessary risk assessments and have compiied
with all health and safely requirements. The UK operations of the Group holds 150 140017 and (S0
2001 certifications and have been audited by the International Organization for Standardization during
the perod, with no issues of any non-conformance. The Group are striving towards achieving
15045007 which is the thind of the major 150 Accreditations it i5 expected this will be achieved in
2018/20.

The Group monifor the supply chain and the risk thet this could pose to the fulure of the business. The
directors are confident that there is no one single supply partner that could materially affect the resuflls
of the business goeng forward, and are moving fo a model fo reduce the reliance on ouiside suppliers
by making the ocperalion of tha Group mors vertical
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Seal It Services Limited

Strategic report foostnued)
Year ended 31 March 2019

The economic envircmment inwhich the Group operates |s expecled bo remain positive during the next
twalve maonths, however, the lulune impscd of Breet on the local economy remang upcertam. Tha
Group s commited to taking & proaciive approach 1o the mplcations, fsks and challenges that any
changes Braxit may bring to the business and minimise any advarss impact

Obdigationg under the Data Frotection Act 1998 and the increasing pace and comploxily of cyber
securily risks are addressed by in house experisnced Information Technology specialisls who are
consfanily monilorng and reviewing e nebwork securily and firewalls lo ensure that no unauthorized
access s parmitiad. The Group has a robust, live and fully tested business continully plan o deal with

disaslar recovery,

Devalopmeant and performance of the business

The directors are salisfied with Lhe pardermance of the business in the paeriod under review, The year
has been ona of strong revenua growth, and the directors hawve inested haavily both in fixed assels
and parsonnal, o ansura that the business s well grucluned o daal with the continuing growth.

Principal risk and uncertainties
In comman with all companies operating in the United Kingdony, [he Group faces Increasing cosls.
The diraciors ars of tha apinion thal tha Graup is well positioned to managa theee cosis,

Eeanamis mek .
Tha risk of increassd infarest rates anddor inflation may have an adverse Impact an served markets, In
erier 1o manage this the Group hes enterad inte long term borrowing arrangements.

Ciompadition Ak
The Group manages competiiion risk through close altention lo customar sapdice levels and aowrcing
compaetitve products.

Financial rlsk
All ey financial igures are monitored on an cngoing basis,

Future developments
With an experenced management tsam, & strong product portfolic, well invested asset bases and a

robust financlal position, we remain confidant in the continued success and developmant of the
business.

This reporl was approved by the board of directors on I'-Hhﬂejiﬂii' and signed on bahalf of the
bagrd

e

MrG
Directpr

Regstered office:

un i

River Bank Way
Lewllalds Bunivess Park
West Y orkshira

HXE 90N
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Seal It Services Limited

Directors' report
Year ended 31 March 2019

The directors presant their report and financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2018,

Events after the reporting date
There are no evends after the reparting date which require disclosure,

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of cradit risk,
ligquidity risk and exchange risk. The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks 1o
limit the adverse effects on the financial performance aof the Group by monitoring levels of exchange
exposura and credit risk.

Given the size of the Group, the directors have not delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial
risk management to a sub-committea of the board. The policies set by the board of directors are
Implamanted by the Group's finance depariment

Directors
The directars who sensed the Group durlng the period were as follows:

Mr G Halm

Mr D Moare

Mr & Engineer

Mrz J Engineer

Mr P Wabtars (resignad 30 Apdl 2018)

Strategic report
The strategic report i included at pages 2 1o 3

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Direciors’ Report and the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the direciors to prepare financial siatemenis for each financial year, Linder that
law, the directora have elected to prepare the financial statemenis in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Slandards (IFRSs) as adoptad by the European Union and applicable law

Under Company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a frue and fair view of tha state of affairs of the Group.

in preparing these financial statements, the directors are also required to;
# select suitable accounting palickas and then apply tham consistantly,
*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

#« present information, inchuding accounting policies, in a2 manner thal provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it i3 inappropriate o presume
that thie Graup will continue in business.
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Seal It Services Limited

Directors’ report continwed)
Year anded 31 March 2019

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records thal are sulficient o show and
ewplain the Group's transactions and disclose with reasonsble accurscy at any fime the fnancisl
position of the Group and enable them o ensure thal the financial sislements comply with the
Companies Act 2008, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence
for taking reasonabla steps for tha provantion and defection of frawed and ofher irragulantias,

Each of the persons whao is a director at the dats of apgroval of this report confim that:

# =0 far as sach dirsclor = aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's awdilor

= unaware; and

= sach director has taken all steps thal they ought 1o have taken as a direclor o make themsalves
awane of any relevant aud? informaltion and to estabish that the audifor k2 aware of that

nformation.

Auchitor

The auddors, BDD Monhern Irefand, have exprezsed thekr willingness to continee In office and a
resohion 1o reappaint them will be proposed st the annual general meating in accordance with
section 485 of the Compamnias Act 2006,

This report wee approved by the board of direclors on I o Hﬂzaﬂqnd signad an bahalf of tha
Ty

Lewrlialds Business Park
Waesl ¥oukshire
HXE 80N
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Seal It Services Limited
Independent auditor's report to the members of Seal It Services Limited
Year ended 31 March 2019

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Seal It Servicas Limitad (“the Parent Company™ and its
subsidiaries ("the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 201% which comprise the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statermerd of Financial
Pesition and Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial staterments, including a summary of
significant accounting policles. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the Eurcpean Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Im ur.opinion;

= {he financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent
Company's affairs as st 31 March 2010 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

= the Group financial statermeants have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the Europaan Linion,

s the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
85 adopied by the Eurcpean Union and a3 applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006: and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requiremeants of tha
Companias Act 2006,

Basls for opinion

We conducted our audif in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (LK) and
applcable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statemants in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfifed our oiher ethical responsibilifies in zccordance with these requirements. YWa balisva that the
audit evidence we have oblained ks sufficient and appropriate to provida a basis for our apinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern
Vile hawve nothing to report in respect of the following maiters in relation to which the 15As (UK) reguine
us to report to you where;

« the Directors’ use of the gaing concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financil
statemenis is not appropeiate; or

s {he Direclors have not disclosed in the financial statemants any identfied material uncertainties
ihat may cast significant doubt about the Group or the Parant Company's ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

RIHF Bhwileorm Belarsl, a pubsordbip foeme] in sl gszker @ee lee ol Iieilees peiomi is lomses o opeake edilin cie
fmimn i, D recsnw® ol mlyeecesd el fime

& IRl ey e e | npeen 10 WRpaeTm A b e ek maed] iR, Dinehoy Disene | 100 allpralsr S, Rsilya, BT AR

Bt ke lismrn blaral st o ored vopristod gt | issasoed Coedint dastiae iy 0 combed vl lsminns



IBDO -

Seal It Services Limited

Independent auditor's report to the members of Seal It Services Limited
fcontinmed)

Year ended 31 March 2019

Dther information
The Directors sre responsible for the other information. The other ivformation comprises the
infarmation includad in the annual report, athar than the financial statements and our auditor's report
therean. Our opinion on the financial siatements does not cover the other information and, except 1o
the extent otherwize explicilly siated n our report, we do not exprass any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statemenis, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, In dodng so, consider whather the ather information ks matarially nconsistent with the
financial staiements or our knowledge obigined in the audit or otherwise appears o be materialiy
mizstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatemants, we are
required to determine whether there s a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
mabaral msstatamant of tha othar information. If, bazed on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatemant of this other information, we are reguired o report that fact,

We hawve nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Im our gpinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

& the information given in the Stratagic report and Directors’ rapart for the financial yaar for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the Sirategic report and Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the [ight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Cormpany and its

enviranment obtained in the course of the awdit, we have not identified material misstatemants in the
Sirategic report and Director's repodt.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2008 requires us fo raport o you If, in our opinion;

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

« the Parent Company financial statemenis are not in agreement with the accounting records and
retums; of

« gertain disclesures of Directors’ remungration specified by law are not made; ar

# wa have nol received all the information and explanations we require for pur audit.
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Seal It Services Limited

Independent auditor's report to the members of Seal It Services Limited
{caniimped)

Year ended 31 March 20198

Responsibilities of Directors

Ag explained more fully in the Directors responsibllities statemant, the Directors are respansible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satished that they give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the Directors determing is necessary o enable the preparation of financial
statements thal are free from material misstaterment, whether due io fraud or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsibie for assessing the Group's and the
Parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applcable, matbers related 1o
going concern and wsing the going concern basis of accounting wnkess the Directors either intend fo
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no reallstic atternative bt
o da so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives ane (o ocbtaln reasonable sssurance about whether the financlal statemants as a whola
are free from material missiaiement, whether due io fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
Incluses our opinion. Reascnable assurancs 5 a high leval of assuranca, but 5 not @ guarantesa that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1543 (UK) will always detect a material misstaiement when it
axists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considared material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infuence the economic decisions of users takan on
the basis of thesa financial statameants.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements = located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at:  hitfps:f'www frc.org. ul/suditorsresponsibilities.

Thiz description forms part of our audifor's report.

Use of our repart
This report is made solaly to tha Parant Compamy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chaphar

3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2005, Our audit work has baen undertaken so that we might siate
to the Parent Company's members those matiers we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no ofher purpose, To the fullest extent permitted by faw, we do not accepl or essume
responsiblity to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company's membare as a
body, far our audit wark, for this reporl, or for the opinions we have formed.

Lawa Joclgon

Laura & W Jacksan, senior slatutory auditor

For and on behalf of BDO Northemn Ireland, statutory auditor
Lindsay Housa

10 Callender Street

Balfast

BT1 65BN

16 May 2015
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Seal It Services Limited

Consolidated statement of profit and loss and comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Mate E E

Continuing operations
Revenue 4 21.582410 17285259
Cost of sales 14,858,612 12,008,437
Gross profit 6,722,788 5. 186,822
Distribution costs 2,035485 2,330,548
Administrativa expanses 3,572,837 2 484, 1861
Oiher operating income (56,084) [12,168)
Operating profit 1,171,450 374, 379
Finance cosis T 314,756 247 HBG
Profit before taxation B56,694 126,513
Taxation g 214,903 74,415
Profit for the year 641,781 62 098
Other comprehensive income
Farsign axchange movameant 51,301 17,328
Tetal comprehensive income for the year 693,082 89,437
Attributable to:
Cwmers of the parent company 693,092 63,437

All the aclivities of the Group are from confinuing operations.,

The noles on pages 14 to 47 form part of these financial statements.
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Seal It Services Limited

Consolidated statement of financial position
31 March 2019

20149 2018
HNota E E

Mon-current assets
Infangible assels L[] 2302342 2276885
Froperty, plant and equiprmaeant 11 5,432 907 4,504 496
Total non-current assets 7,735,249 E-.E?1,Ei:l-‘.|
Current assats
Irnwentary 13 3,047,060 2480863
Trada and other receivables 14 4684907 3718496
Cash ard cash equivalonts 15 a56,184 148,590
Total surrent assels 8588151  B.34336B
Total assets 16,323,400  13,019.669
Liabllities
MNon-curreni Rabilities
Laoans and borrowings 16 4,952,369 3334455
Dafermad Lax labies 14 143,170 141 481
Total mon-current Babilites 5085538 4135036
Current liabilties
Loans and bormowings 16 3018460 3019660
Trada and olher payables 17 3,171,003 020,767
Total currenl liabiifies T 680463 4038427
Total labiities 12,786,002 10,175,363
Met assots 3,637,358 2,844 306
Equity attributahle to owners of the parent
Share capital 15 100 100
Riedained sarmmings 20 3,580,923 25308, 130
Foralgn exchange reserde 20 [43,831) (B, 5y
Tatal equity 3,637,398 2,844,305

e e PSS S S8

These financial stalsments were approved by the board of direclors and authorisod Tor issus on “f!nﬂﬁ
ang, are signed on kehalf of the board by

registration numbar: (4487 208

The notes an pages 14 to 47 form part of these financial statamants.
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Company statement of financial position
31 March 2018

20149 044
Hate E E

Hon-current assets
Proparly, plant and aquipment 11 4652766 3706550
Imvasirmants 12 542,340 G2 340
Othar recaivables 14 3,728,568 3,190,447
Tatal non-currant assels 8,923,663 7. A30,348
Current assets
Imsanlany 13 2,719,736 2 48 BEZ
Trade and othar recaivablas 14 4,324,725 3453164
Cash and cash equivalenis 15 B30, 201 148,035
Total current sassls T.B7T6,861 5,845,888
Tolal assels 16,600,324 13385212
Liabilitles
Mon-current labilities
L.oans and borrowings 16 4862368 3593017
Defermed tax abilities 18 143,170 141,481
Tietal non-current liabilities 5,085 538 4, §35,354
Current liabillties
Loans and borrowings 18 3.818.460 3,018,880
Trade and olher payables 17 3,576,561 2,858,564
Total curnenl liabiities 7.486,021  587E254
Total llabilities 12,680,660 10,013,652
Met assots 4,208,764 3,371,560
Equity atiributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 19 1040 100
Retalnad aarflngs 20 4,127,384 3,253 023
Forekan exchange resemne 20 82,266 118,437
Total egquity 4,209,764 3,371,580

& fingncial statements were approved by e board of diveciors and authorsad lor ig6us an "—ﬂ'm"lrﬁ
are s of the board by

any registration numbar: 04467206

The notas on pages 14 1o 47 form parl of these financial statements.
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AL April 2018
Profit for the year

Foreign currency gain
Total comprahansive income tor the year
At 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2017

Profit for the year
Foreign cumency gain

Tetal comprehenshne income for the year
At 31 March 2018

Foreign
Issued share exchange  Retained
capital reserve earnings  Total equity
E £ £ E
100 (94,932) 2939138 2,844,306
» - 641,791 G41,791
= 5 r3"1 = 51 !a'ull
- 51,301 641,791 693,002
100 (43,631) 3,580,929 3,537,398
Foreign
Issued share exchange  Retained
capital FESErVE carnings  Total equity
E E E E
100 (112,271) 2,887,040 2,774,880
- - 62,058 52,008
- 17,330 - 17,339
- 17,339 62,098 B9, 437
100 (04,832) 2939138 2,844,306

The notes an pages 14 to 47 form part of these fingncial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit after taxation

Adjustmeant for.

Depreciation

MNet finance costs

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Accrued expenses

Foreign currancy

Tax on profit of ondinary aclivities

Changes in working capital;

Movement in inventory

KMovement in trade and other receivables
Movement in trade and other payables

Cash genarated from operations

Interest paid
Income tax paid

Met cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of aguipmeant
Acquisition throwgh business combinations
Purchasa of property, plant and aguigment

Met cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from linancing activities

Capital repayment of finance lease repayments
Proceeds from parent company

Repayment of parent company loan

Froceeds from bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Met cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities
Met (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

2019 2018
Mote £ £

641,791 52,058
711,582 632, 524
314,756 24T BEG

= 1814

170,175 (77,208)
(16,227) -
214,903 74,415
2,036,990 931,530
(501,33Z) (¥08,288)
(B58,334) (118,235)
407,080 1,064, 156
1,083,784 1,167 452
(258,232)  (184,272)
(182,66T) (54, 105)
642,885 819,085

- 4 584

(29,048) =
(1,548,021) (1,550,119}
(1,677.068) (1,545535)
(265, 718) (318 484)
818,110 B0, 780
(102,392) -
663,600 528 000
(431,249) (876,084
682,251 285,212
{251,933) (231,238)
(2,089,482) (1,858 244)
16 (2,341,415) (2,089,482)

The notes on pages 14 to 47 form part of thess financlal atatements,
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Seal It Services Limited
MNotes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2019

1.

General information

Seal It Services Limited is a Company Incorporated and domicibed in the United Kingdom. The
ragstered office of the Company is Unit G168, River Bank Way, Lowfields Business Park, West
Yarkshire, HX5 80M. The principal activity of the Company and s Subsidiary is the manufacture
and supgly of bullding products and building chemicals.

The consclidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors an .., ..,
Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The principal accounting palicies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
cut below. These accounting polcies have been applied consistently for all years presented
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is also
the Group’s funchional currency, Amounis are rounded fo the nearest pound, unbess olhervise
stated,

Tha consalidated fnancial statements of Seal || Sendcas Limited have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union {IFRSs as adopled by the EU). The consclidated financial
stalements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of finencial statements in compliance with adopied IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires Group management to exercise judgement
in applyving the Group's accounting policies. The areas where significant judgements and
estimates have bean made in preparing the financial stalements and their effect are disclosad in
note 2

Going concern

The financial stataments have been prepared on the going concern basis. After making
appropriate enquines and having prepared and reviewed cash flow forecasts which take into
account reasonabsy possible changes in rading performance, the direclors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to confinue in operational existence for the
foreseaable future and for al least one year from the date of these financial statements. For
these reasons they conlinue fo adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group's financial
slaterments.

Basis of consalidation

The consolidated financial statemenis incorporate the financial statements of the Group and all
Group undertakings. Intercompany transactions and balances betweaen the Group companies are
therefore eliminated in full. The consolidaied financial statements incorporate the resdlts of
bussiness combinations using the acqusition method. In the stalement of financial position, the
acquiree's identifiable assetls, liabilifies and confingent liabilities are initially recognised at their
fair values at the agquisiion dale, The resulls of acquired operations are included in the
consolidated stalement of comprehensive income from the date on which conirgl i obtalned.
They are deconsolidated from the date on which coniral ceases.
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Seal It Services Limited
Motes to the financial statements jcontinues

Year ended 31 March 2019

2,

Accounting policies fcontnwed)
Exemptions

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the
Companies Act and not presented an income statement, or statement of comprehensive income,
for the Company alone.

Revenue recognition
Performance abligations and timing of revenua recognifion

The majority of the Group's revenue is derived from selling goods with revenue recognised at a
point In ime when controd of the goods has fransferred o the customer. This is generally when
the goods are defivered to the customer. Delivery shall be deemed to have taken place:

¢+ n the case of camriage arranged by the Company by iis own tfransport or othersise, when
gocds are taken from the vehicle at the delivery peint in the United Kingdom specified in
writing by the Customer and agreed by the Company prior to despatch

* |n the case of cariage aranged by the Customer by its own transport or otherwise when the
gocds are loaded onlo the vehicle used,

There is limited judgement needed in identifying the point control passes; onca physical dalivery
of the products to the agreed location has occurred, the Group no longer has physical
possession usually will have a present right to payment and retains none of the significant risks
and rewards of the goods in guestion.

Determining the transaction price

Al of the Group's revenue |5 derlved from fixed price confracts and therefore the amount of
revenue {o be eamed from each contract is determined 1o reference to those fixed prices. Some
contracts provide customers with a limited right of refurn. Historical experience enables the
Group to estimata raliably the value of goods that will be returned and restrict the amount of
revenue that is recognised such that it i highly probabée that there will not be & reversal of
previously recognised revenues when goods are returned.

Allocating amounts fo performance obligations

For most contracts there i3 a fixed unit price for each product sold. Therefore, there is no
judgement involved in allocating the confract price 1o each unit ordered in such caniracts, Where
a customer orders. mora than ong product line, the Group iz able bo determine the split of the total
contract price between each product line by reference to each products standalone selling prices.
Interest expense recognition

Expense is recognised as imlerest accrues, using the effective interest method, to the net
carrying amount of the financial liabifity.
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Seal It Services Limited
Motes to the financial statements jcontmued)
Year ended 31 March 2018

2,

Accounting policies jcontinued)
Employee benefits: Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into & separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does nat hold sufficient assets lo
pay all employeas the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the confributions have been paid. The
confributions are recognised as employes banefit expensa over the period of employes service.

Foreign currency translation

The funclional currency of the Group & Pounds Sterding because that s the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates. The Group's presentafion cumency
i& Pounds Starling.

Trensactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are fransiated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailling at the dates of fhe iransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the setflement of such transactions and from the transiation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assats and labilities denominated In foreign currencies are recogniged in the income
statement,

O consolidation, the results of overseas operations are translated into pounds sterling at rates
approximating to those muling when the ransactions took place. All assels and liabilities of
overseas operations, including goodwill arising on the acquisition of those operations, are
Iranslated al the rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on transiating the
opening net asseis at opening rate and the results of overseas operafions al actual rate are
recognised in other compreheangive income and accumulated in the foreign exchange raserve.
The USA Subsidiary was franslated using the year end rate for consolidation purposes. The
following exchange rates were applied for £1 at 31 March:

2018 2018
United States dollar 1.30305 1.4028
Euro 1.1605 11406

Property, plant and equipment
Chwned assals

ltemns of properly, plant and equipment are stated al cost less accumuiated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs
attributable o bringing the assel fo s working condifion for s intended use. When parls of an
term of property, plant and aquipment hava different useful lives, those components are
accounted for as separale items of properly, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the financial statements jcontinued
Year ended 31 March 2019

2,

Accounting policies fcortinued)

Property, plant and equipment feontinuead)
Owread assals fcontineed

Subsequent cosls are included in the asset's carrying amaount or recognised as a separate assef,
as approprizte, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will fiow 1o the Group and the cost of the fem can be measured reliably, Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by comparing the proceads.

Lgazed assels

Leazes under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leasas s recorded at fair value or, If lower, the present value of minimum lesse payments at
inception of the lease, less depreciation and any impairment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liabilily and finance charges. Thea correspending
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in the other long-term payables. The
imter=st element of the finance cost 15 charged to the income sialement over the lease pericd so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remalining balance of the ¥ability for each
period. The propery, plant and equipment under finance leases is depreciated over the shorer
of the useful e of the azzel and leaze term.

Daprocialion

Deprectation is charged to profit or loss on a siraight-line basis over the estimated useaful llves of
each part of an item of propery, plant and equipment. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and
tha lease term. Freshold land is not depreciated. The estimatad useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold Property = 4% Straight Line

Plant & Machinery = 12.5% - 20% Straight Line
Fixtures & Fittings = 20% Straight Line

krator Vehiclas - 20% - 25% Straight Line
Equipment = 20% - 33% Straight Line
Goodwill

Goodwill represenis the excess of the cost of a business combination over the tatal acquisition
date fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingant Eabilitles acqguined.

Goodwill s capitalised as an intangible asset with any Impaiment In camying value being
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Where the fair value of
identifisble assels, liabiFfies and confingent liabililies excesd the fair value of consideration paid,
the excess i cradited in full to the consolidated statement of comprehansive income on the
acquisition date in other comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 12
not revarsad.
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2.

Accounting policies feontimmen)
Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at thelr purchase cost less any provision for diminution in
valua. Invastimeant income ks Included In the profit and loss account on-an accrual basis.

Impairment of non-current assets

Impairment tests on goodwill is underaken annually ai the financial year end, Other non-financial
assefs are subject fo impairment tests whanever events or changes in circumstances ndicate
thal their carrying amount may not be recoverable, Where the carrying value of an assef excesds
its recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of value in use and fak value less costs lo sall), he asset
is written down accordingly

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first
im first out basis. Cost comprises material costs, direct wages and other direct production costs
iogether with a proportion of production overheads relevant to the stage of completion of work in
prograss and finished goods and axcludes borrowing costs. Met realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to completion and appropriate sefling and distribution costs.
Provision is made, where nacessary, for slow moving, obsolete and defective inventories,

Financial assotls
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables, Managemeni deiermines the
classificaton of its financm:l assets at initial recognition.

Loans and recaivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments
that arise principally through the provision of services o customars. They are initially recognised
at fair value, and are subsequenily stated at amortised cost using the effective intereat method.
They are all included in current assets, Loans and receivables comprise malnly cash and cash
equivatants and frade and clhar receivables.

Impadrment of financlal assels

Impament provisions are recognised when there |8 objective evidenca (such as significant
financial difficulties on the part of the counierparly or default or significant delay in payment) that
the Group will ba unable to collect all of the amounis dua under tha terms recaivabla, the amaount
of such a provisian being the difference: between the met carmying amouni and the present value
of the future expecied cash flows assoclated with the impaired racelvable.
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Notes to the financial statements cantinued)
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2,

Accounting policles foontinued
Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short lerm deposits. Shon
term deposits are defined as deposits with &n initial maturity of three manths ar less.

Bank overdrafls thal are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the
statemnent of cash flows.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial labdities include the following fems:

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of ransaction costs incurred,
Borrowings are subsequently cared at amortised cost, any differance batween the proceeds
{net of transaction costs) and the redemplion vakse is recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective Interest method.

Share capital

Financial instrumeants (ssued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they
do not meet the definition of a financlal llablity or financlal asset The Group's ordinary shares
are classified as equity instrumant

Incomme tax

Income tax for the years presanted comprises current and deferrad tax. Income tax is recognised
in profit or loss,

Current tax s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the yvear, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payabile in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for tempaorary
differences betwean the carrying amounts of assats and liabilses for inancial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxabon purpases.

The following temparary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the
initial recognition of olher assels or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor axable profit, nor
differences ralating to invesimeanis in subsidiaries o the extent thal they are unlikely 1o reverse in
the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantislly enacied at the balance sheet date,

A deferred tax assel is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profis
will be avallable against which the assel can be utifized, Deferred fax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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2

Accounting policies feontinuecd)
Incomme tax fcontmead)

Deferred income lax assels and llabilities are offset when there ks a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current lax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilties relate fo income taxes levied by the same taxalion authorly on either the laxable
entity or different taxable entities wheare there is an intention to settle the balances on a nel basis,

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences ariging on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, axcept for deferrad income lax liabilly whera the timing of the reversal of the
tempaorary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foresesable fulure,

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders s recognised as a liability In the Group's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's
shareholders,

Fair value estimation

Fair values are estimatad based on tha fair value hierarchy of IFRS 13 which defines the different
levais of Talr valus as follows:

& qguoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

¢ Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assat or
liability, either directly or indirectly {level 2},

+ inpuls for the assef or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3),
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The objective of the Group's capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains strong
credit ratings and capital ratios, This will ansure that the business is correctly supported and
shargholder value is maximisad,

The Group manages jis capital structure through adjustments that are dependent on economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capiltal strecture, the Group may choose 1o change
or amend dividend payments to shareholders or issue new share capital to shareholders. There
were no changes to the objectives, policies or processed during the period ended 31 March
2018,
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2

3

Accounting policies (contues)
Mew standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2018

Mew standards impaciing the Group thatl will be adoptad in the annual financial statemants for
the year ended 31 March 2015 ane:

» [FRS 8 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9); and
« |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers (IFRS 15)

These standards or inflerpretations effective for the first ime for periods baginning on or after 1
January 2015 did not have a significant effect on the Group's financizl statements,

Diher new and amended siandards and Inferpreiations issued by the 1ASB that will apply for the
first time in the next annual financial staternants are not expeckad o impact the Group as they
are either not relevant fo the Group's aclivities or require accounting which is consistent with the
Group's currant accounting policies.

Mew standards, interpretations and amendments not yel effective

v IFRS 16 "Leasaes’ (effective 1 January 2018). This is a new standard establishing principles
for the recognition, measurement, prasentalion and disclosure of leases, with the objective of
ansuring that lessees and lessors provide relevant information that faithfully represents those
fransaciicns. The standard replaces 1A3 17 and provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees io recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12
manths or less or the underlying asset has a low value,

¢« IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over income tax position” — (effectiva 1 Januwary 2019}, IFRIC 23
clanfies how o recognise and measure current and deferred income 12x assets and liabilites
when there ig uncariainty over income fax treatmants.

# The Group doss nol beliove that the adoption of these standards and interpretatians will
either individually or collectively have a material impact on the Group's financial staterments
in the pericd of initial application.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial staternents under IFRS reguires the directors to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labiites and the
disclosure of confingent assets and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaiuated and are based on historical experience and other factors Including expectations of
future svents that are baleved to be reasonabla under the circumstances. Actual resulls may
differ from these estimates,
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3.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates feontinsen)

The directors have conssdered that the following estimates or judgements likely o have the
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial siatameants:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assetz (3= defalled = note 11), are depreciated at historical cost using a
straight-line method based on the estimated useful life, taking into account any residual value.
The assef's residual value and useful life are based on the direciors’ best esfimates and are
reviewed, and adjusted if required, at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of Goodwill

The estmate of future cash fows and determination of a sultable discount rate ke furthear
discussed Innote 10,

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group has diseggregaied revenue info varous calegories In the following table which is

intended to depict how the natura, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are
affected by economic date,

2019 2018
£ E
LUK Sales 19,360,836 15478 454
US sales 1,441,800 1278775
EU sales 730,034 £28,030
Other 49,740 -

21582410 17 285258

All zabes redate to goods and the timing of the fransfer of goods is on delivery to the custormear
premiseas.
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5. Expenses by nature

Raw materials and consumables used
Employsa costs

Depreciation

Other sales expanses

Repairs

Other cost of sales

Tranaport

Finance cools

Foreign currency gainsilosses)
Cithes administrative costs
Rent and rates

Other income

6. Employees and directors
Staff members:

2019 2018
E E
13,886,858 11,186,736
5,085 832 2,797 438
711,594 632,534
345673 341,744
178,063 185,879
B5445 46,5440
248,726 798,437
314,756 247 BAA
|25,989) 21,745
1,060,477 BO6,731
181,265 244 057
{58,984) {12,188)
20,725,716

17,166,748

The average number of staff employed by the Group during the financial year amaountad o

Mumber of production staff
Mumber of dstributon staff
MWumber of administrative staff
Mumber of management siaff

Dut of the average stafl numbers 11 are amployed by the subsidiary Seal It Inc.

Payroll costs:
The aggregate payrall costs of the above were:

Wages and salanes

Emplovers' national Insurance confributions and similar taxes
Definad confribution pension cost

2018 2018

£ £
45 a8
12 15
53 44
4 4
114 104
2018 2018

E £
2,782,758 2,523,042
270,402 237,724
52,674 35,775
3,085832 27974338
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Employess and directors fremtinwed

Directors' remuneration:

Tha directors® aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services were:

2018 208
£ £
Remunaration receivable 23T 036 263,19
Deafined contribution pension cost 39,690 35,775
276,726 248 966
Remuneration of highest paid director:
2019 2018
E E
Ramunaration recalivabla 112,479 112,284
Deafined contribufion pansion costs 20,583 7,246
133,062

119,630

The number of directors who accrued benefits under Company pansion schemes was as follows:

2018

No.
Money purchase schemes 2

Key management compensation:

2018
Mo,

3

Key management parsonnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and contralling the activities of the Group, both direcily and indirectly

The following table details the aggregate compensation paid i respect of the members of key

management.
20148 2018
E g
Remunearafion receivable 237,036 263,181
Defined contribution pension cost 39,680 35776
276,726 258, 956
Retirement benefits:

The Group runs a defined benafit pansion scheme for its employees, During the year, the Group

mada contributions of £52 674 (2018; £35,775)
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7. Fimance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities measurad at amortisad cost
and other simdar charges
Finance leases (interast portion)

g,  Auditors remuneration

Auditors remuneration;
- @& audibor

Other services:

- laxation sarvicas

8, Taxation
Major components of tax expense

jajAnalysis of charge in the year

Current tax:
In respect of the year.

Current tax based on the results for the year at 18%
{2018 - 19%)
Underi{Over) provision in prior year

Tatal currant tax
Defarred fax:

Origination and reversal of iming differences
Adjusiments in respect of prior pariods’

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

20148 2018

£ F
218,015 224,715
86,741 23,18
314,758 247 BA6
2018 2018

E E
20,000 20,000
2,000 2,000
22,000 22,000
2014 18

E E
222,316 96,290
(3,102) 2,580
213,214 98,880
{5,503) (24,465)
7,192 -
214,903 T4 415
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.

10.

Taxation [comtinued)
(b} Factors affecting current tax charge

The tax assessed on the profit on ordinary actvities for the year is higher than the standard rate

of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018 - 199}

Profit bafore taxatan

Profit by rate of corporation tax in UK

Expansas not deductible for tax purposes
Surplus of depreciation over capital allowances
Adjustrnents to tax charge In respect of previous
periods

Unrelieved foreign tax losses

Deferred tax - fixed asset timing difference

Total tax charge

Intangible assets

Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions acquired through business combinations

At 31 March 2018

Amortization and impairment
At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018

2m8e 2018
E £
1,002,228 126,613

190,424 24,037
2,821 2,679
22,922 14,516

(8,102) 2,590
- 27,714

7,838 2,879
214,903 74415

Goodwill
£

2,276,885
25457

2,302,342

2,302,342
2,276,865

The Group is required fo test, on an annual basks, whether goodwill has suffered any impairmeant
The recoverable amount is determined based on value in use calculations. The use of this
method requiras the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of a discount rate in
arder fo calculate the present value of the cash flows. Management are of the view that no
indicators of impalrment were notad as al the 31 March 2018 and this will ba re-assessed

annually going forward.
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10. Intangible assets fcontinuod)

11.

Managemeant reviews the business performance based on aparating segments Mentified as UK &
Ireland and the US. Goodwill with indefinite usefud lives are monitored by management at
operating segment lavel. All of the goodwill is within the US segmeant. The recoverable amount of
all cash generating units (CGUs) has been determined based on valus in use calculations, These
calculations use pre-fax cash flow projections basad on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated balow, The growth rate does not excead the
long term average growth rate for the sealant business in which the CGLU operates. The key
assumptions used for value in use calculations were as follows:

Compound revanue growth 10%
Long term growih rate 10%
Discount rate 3%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its
expaclations of market development. The growth rates used are consistent with the forecasits
included in industry reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
o the relevant operating segments. Management have considersd the sensifivily of thase
assumplions and consider that no reasonable changes In the assumptions would lead o an
impaimment of the Intangible assats.

During the year the Group scquired the business and asseis of another company. The amount
pard was £29 048 with net assels acquired of £3,591 an which goodwill arose an the acquisition
of E25,457

Property, plant and equipment

Group
Leasehold Flant & Fixturas & Motor
Property Machinery Fittings  Vehicles Equipment Tatal
E E E E E E

Coslt
AL 1 Apr 2018 2475, 782 4,082,387 421,184 106,182 210,698 7,195,223
Additions 916,896 G056, 608 47 367 - 11.062 1,675,023
Acquisitions - - - - 22,404 22,404
FX 5,908 53,032 &07 - 211 59 B85
At31Mar2019 3208566 4835134 460,158 105182 244475 8,952,515
Depreciation
A1 Apr 2018 255252 2,136,529 174,865 69,518 164,641 2,800,807
Charge for year 127,107 497,342 £1,720 8,677 25746  T11,594
FX 370 6,460 - - 380 7,210
At 31 Mar 2019 382,720 2,640,331 226,585 78,195 190,768 3,519,609
Met book value

At 31 Mar 2019 2,8416837 2104800 242,573 25,887 53,706 5,432,907
At 31 Mar 2018 2,120,510 1945868 246319 35,664 46,066 4,304,416
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11.

Property, plant and eguipment fcontineed)

Group

Cost

AL Apr 2017
Additions
Disposals

FX

AL 31 Mar 2018

Depreciation
AL 1 Apr 2017
Charge for year
Charge on
disposals

FX

At 31 Mar 2018

Het book value
At 31 Mar 2018

At 21 Mar 2017

Leasehold FPlant & Fixiures & Motar
Property Machinery Fittings  Vehicles Eguipment Total
£ £ E E £ £

1,545.878 3458422 334,234 123,182 177,875 5,630,601
838,091 649,818 56,950 - 33Bx2 1.618682

- - - (18,000} ¥ (18,000)

(B,207)  (26.844) - - (1,099)  (38,150)
2,376,762 40823497 421,184 105,182 210,698 7195223
166,185 1,671 447 130,132 75,626 133,377 2,976,787
28,921 452 485 44,733 5,382 31,033 632,634

- - - {11,500} - {11,500)

136 2817 - - 233 2986
265,252 2,136,529 174,865 59,518 184,643 2,800,807
2120610 1,545,868 245,219 35 664 45,056  4,384.415
1378683 1.787.575 184,102 47 5468 44 698 3,453,004

Finance lease commitments

Included within the net book value of £5,432 907 is £220,6837 (2018: £739,477) relaling fo assets
held under finance lease commitments, The depreciafion charged to the financial statements in
the year in respact of such assets amounted to E288 231 (2018: £168,525).

Capital commitments

Contracted but not provided for in the financial

staiements

g
3

300,000

2018
£

823,335
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11. Property, plant and equipment fcontimeod)

Company
Leasehald Plant & Fixiures & Mator
Property Machinery Fittings  Vehicles Eguipment Total
£ £ E E £ E

Cost
At 1 Apr 2018 2,298,583 3,383,569 421,184 105,182 198,688 6,407,217
Additions 911,436 568,769 47,367 - 10,664 1,638,238
At 31 Mar 2018 3210019 3,952.338 468,551 105,182 209,363 T.945453
Depreciation
At Apr 2018 250,148 2,048,911 174,866 69,518 159,216 2,700,658
Charge for the
year 122,850 386,066 51,720 9,677 21,927 592,040
At 31 Mar 2019 372,998 2,432,777 226,585 79,195 181,143 3,292,698
Net book value

At 31 Mar 2019 2,837,021 1,519,561 241,986 25,987 28,220 4,652,755

reacwm e

At 31 Mar 2018 2,048,435 1,336,659 246,318 35,664 35,482 EL.TEIE.EE

Cost

Ab 1 Apr 2017 1,470,303 3,167,228 324234 123,182 167,845 5,242,793

Additions B28, 280 246,240 BE 980 = 30,854 1,182,424

Disposals - - - {18,000) - {18,000)
At 31 Mar 2018 2,298 5683 3,383,569 421,184 105,182 198,699 6,407,217

Depreciation

At Apr 2017 164,835 1,647 346 130,132 75,636 131,231 2,149,280

Charge for the

year 85213 398,564 44,733 o082 27,985 562,878

Charge on

disposals - - - {11,500) - {11,500)
At 31 Mar 2018 250,148 2,046,910 174,865 69,518 158,216 2,700,658

MNet book value

At 31 Mar2018 2048435 1338850 248,319 35,664 30,482 3,708,550

AL31Mar2017 1305968 1500883 104102 47548 35614 3093513

e RSN S S
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11. Property, plant and equipment jconfinuse)

12.

Finance lease commitmenis

Includad within the nat book value of £4 852 755 is £414, 118 (2018: £739 477) ralaling 1o assets
held under finance lease commitments, The depreciafion charged fo the financial statemanis in
tha year In respect of such assels amounted 1o £288,231 (2018: £168,525).

Capital commitments

2018 2018
E E
Coniracted but nof provided for in the financial
glataments 300,000 205,000
Invastments
Company Group
companies
E
Cost
AL 1 April 2018 542 340
Addifions -
Disposals -
et book value
At 31 March 2013 542,340
Al 31 March 2018 542 344

The sole subsidiary of Seal It Services Lid, which has been included in these consolidated
financial siatements, is as follows:

Country of Proportion of Matura of
incorporation  voting rights and business
shares held
Seal it Inc usa 100% Manufaciuring

The registered offica of Seal It Inc is: 3301 Industrial Drive, Sanford, NG 27332.
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13.

14,

Inventories
Group
20148
£
Raw materials 1,616,351
Work in progress 61,087
Finkzhed goods 1,379,642
3,047,060

2018

£
1,150,085
52,764
1,278,034

2480683

The cost of inventorias recognised as expensss and included in cost of sales amounted 1o

£13,096,858 (2018 £11,185,738),

Company
2019 2018
E £
Raw malerials 1,436,181 1,026,145
Work in prograss 42,519 46 853
Finished goods 1,241,065 1,273 BG4
2,719,736 2,346,663
Trade and other receivables
Group
2019 2018
E ¥
Trade recaivables 4 377,798 3 359860
Less: provision for impairmeant of trade recaivablas {38,571) {10,875}
Trade receivables = net 4 338237 3348893
Total fimancial assets other than cash and cash
equivalents classified as amortised cost 4,338,227 3,348,853
Dther recevables 222872 208,673
Prepayments and accrued income 123,808 160,925
Total trade and other receivables 4. 684,907 3:TT_E_,4ﬂ5

Trade and other receivables are held at cost as fair value approximates cost Trade and other
recaivables ara considered pasi due onca they have passed their confracted due date, Trade

receivables are reviewed for impairment if they are past dus beyond 90 days.
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14. Trade and other receivables fcontimmed)

The carrying valua of frade and other receivables classified at amortised cost approximates falr
valug.

Al 31 March 2018, £3,402180 (2018; £2295300) had been soid to a provider of invoice
discounting and debt factoring sarvices, The Group is committed to undarwrite any of the debts
transferred and therefore continues o recognise the debis sold within trade receivables until the
debiors repay or default, Since the rade receivables conlinue to be recognisad, the business
modal of the Group is not affected

The expecled loss rates are based on the Group's historical credit losses experienced over the
three-year parod price to the period end. The historical boss rates are then adjusted for current
and foraard-looking informalion on macroeconomic factors affecting the Group's customers, The
Group has identified the gross domestic product (GOP), unemployrment rate and inflation rate as
the key macroseconamic factors in the countries where tha Group operates.

The carrying amaounts of the Group's trade and olher recaivables are denominabed in the
following curmencias:

2019 2018
E E

Starfing 4,328,725 3445378

US Dollars 358,182 2T 11T

e

4,684,907 3718495

Mevernents on the Group provision for impalrment of trade receivables are as follows!

2019 2018
£ £
At 1 April 2018 10,975 25,305
IncreasafDecrease) in provision for receivables
impaiment 28,596 {14,330)
At 31 March 2019 19,571 10,875

The creation and release of provision for impaked receivables have bean included in
‘adminisirative expenses’ in the income statemant. Amounis charged fo the allowance account
are genarally written off, when there i no expectation of recovaring additional cash,

The other classes within trade and other recelvables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credd risk at the reporting date is ke carrying value of sach class of
recaivables menficned above. The Group doas nol hokd any collateral as sacurity.

At 31 March 2019, trade recalvables of £27,009 (2018: £8,010) were past due bul not impaired
These relate to & number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default
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14. Trade and other recelvables fcontimies)

The ageing analysis of thesa trade recalvables is as follows:

20149 2018

E E
Lip 1o 3 months = -
3 1o 6 months 2T.008 6,010
Chwar 6 monthe - -
At 31 March 2T DA 6010

At 31 March 2013, trade receivables of £39 571 (2018: £10,975) ware impaired. The ageing

analysis of these frade receivables is as follows:

2014 218
E £

Up fo 3 months - 8187
3 1o 6 months 38,57 1,808
Crwar & months - -
At 31 March 38,571 10,976
Company

2019 2018

£ £

Trade receivables 4,047 446 3,125,065
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (31,801) (10,875}
Trads receivables — net 4,015,645 3114 0ak
Reoeivables from group companies 4,728,568  5.190447
Total financial assets other than cash and cash
equivalents classified as amortised cost T.744,213 G, J04, 537
Othier receivables 211,873 218,483
Prepaymenis and accrued income 80,407 122,615
Total trade and other receivables 8,055,203 6,643,615
Less: non-current partion — recelvables from
Qroup Companiss 3,728,568 3190447
Currant Portlion 4,326,725 3,453,168

Trade and other receivables are held at cost as fair value approximates cost. Trade and other
receivables are considered past dus cnce they have passed thedr confracted due date. Trade

receivables are reviewed for impairment if they are past due beyond 90 days.
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14. Trade and other recelvables feommousal

The amounts recaivable from group companies are due for repayment after one year from 31
March 2048, The terms of the Iban carry an interest charge of 3%, E£45613, which has bean
charged to the company profit and foss during the year,

The camying amcunis of the Company's frade and other reczivables are denominated in the
following currencies;

2018 2078

E £
Sterling 4,326,726 3,453,168
U5 Daoliars 3,728,568 3,180,447

8,066,200 6643615

e ]

Movemenis on the company's provision for impairment of rade receivables are as folknes:

2018 28
E E
At Apnl 2018 10,975 20,507
Increase in provision for receivables impairment 20,826 -
Recarvablas writhen off during the year as
uncollectable £ 9,522)
AL 31 March 2019 31,801 10,875

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been inciuded in
‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement, Amounts charged o the allowance account
are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The ather classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assefs,

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date Is the carmying value of each class of
racaivables mantioned above. The company does not hold any coltateral as sacurity.

AL 31 March 2019, trade recaivables of £23, 627 (2018; £5.010) were past due but not impaired.
These reiata to @ number of indepandent customers for whom there is no recent history of

default
The ageing analysls of these trade recevables 15 as follows:
28 2018
E £
Up io 3 months 3 s
3 fo 6 months 23527 6,010
Onear 6 months = -

At 31 March 23527 6,010
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14. Trade and othar receivables fcontinued)

At 31 March 2019, frade receivables of £31.3071 (2018 £10,875) wers impaired, The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Up ta 3 months
3 to 8 months
Over & months

At 31 March

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Group

Cash and cash equivalenis

2019 2018
E E

” 9,167

31,801 1,808

31,801 10.976

2019 20148
E E

856,184

148,990

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes, cash in hand
and at bark of £856 184 offset against shorl term commerclal finance of £3, 197 599 Cash and
cash eguivalents are denominaied in aither £ Sieding or & USD, Includad within cash and cash
equivalents js £783,209 denominated in £ Starling and £72,875 denominated in § LUSD.

Company

Cash and cash eguivalents

All cash and cash equivalents are denominated in £ Sterling.
16. Loans and borrowings

Group

MNon-current

Bank borrowings

Loans from parent company
Fimancs leases

Total non-currant loans and borrowings

2019 2018

E E
830,201 146,035
2019 2018

E E
1,816,896 1,770,718
2,940,147 2,032 882
83,326 163 855
4,952,369 3,894 455
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2Ma 2018
E £
Current
Bank borrowings 3,792 148 2,843 700
Finance leases 127311 174,980
Total currant loans and borrowings 3,819,460 3,018,660
Total loans and borrowings 8,87 1.!-25 LIH 3,115

______

FEG2, 084 of the lcans and borrowings are denominated in % USD with all other amounts
denominated in £ Sterding, Finance leases are sacured against the assels which thay ware usad
o acquira. The interest rate profile of interest bearing bormowings is as folows:

2019 2018
Debt £ Interest % Debt £ Interast 9

Mon-current
Bank barrawings 1,918,886 23% 1777718 2.3%
Loans from parent company 2,940,147 3.0% 2032882 3.0%
Finanoe lsasas 83,326 10.0% 183,855 10.0%

1.952.5&9 3.9&#55
Current
Bank bomowings 3,792,145 23% 2843700 2.a%
Finance leasas 127,311 10.0% 174,850 10.0%

4, 518 460 3,018,660

The carmying amount and fair values af tha non-curent bormowings are follows:

2019 2018
Debt £ Fairvalue £ Dbt £ Fairvalue £
Mon-currant
Bank bomowings 1,918,896 1,658,146 1.777.718 1,353,528
Loans from parent company 2,940,147  2.5477TH 2,032 882 1,860,375
Finance leases 83,328 7128 183,855 131,450
4,052 368 4,283,006 3,854 455 3,345,354
2019 2018
Debt £ Fairvalue £ Dkt £ Fair value £
Currant
Bank barrowings 3,792,148 3,728,149 2,843,700 2843 700
Finance leases 127,311 127,311 174,980 174,960

3919460 3856460 3018880 3,018,860
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The fair value of current barrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is
not significant. The fair values of non-current borrowings are detarmined using Level 3 of the fair
valua hierarchy and are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the bormowing
rates noted above,

The maturity profile of loans and borrowings is as follows:

2019 2018

£ £
Less than one year 3,818,460 3,018,660
Betwesn one and five years 4,481,385 3,994 455
Cwer five years 470,984 -
Total loans and borrowings 8,871,829 7,013,113
Company

2018 2018

E £
Non-current
Bank borrowings 1918896 1.777.718
Loans from parent company 2840147 2032 344
Finance leases 83,326 183,855
Total nen-current loans and bomowings 4,852 3890 3,893.817

2019 2018

£ £
Current
Bank borrowings 3,702148 2843700
Finance leases 127,21 174,060
Total currant loans and barrowings 3,919,460 3,018 660
Total loans and borrowings 8,871,829 7,013,115

£834 869 of the loans and bormowings are denominated In 3 USD with all other amounts
denominated in £ Sterling.
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Finance leeses are secured against the assets which they wera used to acqguire. The nterast
rabe profile of interest bearing borrowings is as follows,

2048 2018
Debt E Interest % Dbt £ Interesl %
Man-current
Bank bofrowings 1,918 896 2.3% 1,777,718 2 3%
Loans from Group underiakings 2,040,147 3.0% 2,032,344 3.0%
Finanoe leasas 93,326 10.0% 183 865 10.0%
4,952 358 3,093 917
Current
Bank borrowings 3,792,149 3.0% 2,843,700 3.0%
Finance leasas 127,311 10.0% 174,960 10.0%
3,919,480 3,018,660

Tha carrying amount and fak values of the non-current borrowings are fallows:

2019 2018
Debt £ Fair value £ Debt £ Fair value £
Won-current
Bank borrowings 1,618,896 1,658,146 1,777,718 1,353,520
Loans from parent company 2,940,147 2547, TH 2032344 1,880, 375
Finance leasas 23,326 77,128 183,855 131,450
4,852,368 4,283,006 3,093 917 3,345 354
2018 2018
Debt £ Fair value £ Dabt £ Fair valua £
Currant
Bank borrowings 3,792,148 3,792,148 2,843,700 2,843 700
Finance leasas 127,311 127,311 174,860 174,060

3,918,460 3918460 3018660 3,018660

The fair value of current bormowings aquals their carmying amount, as the impact of discounting is
not significant, Tha fair values of non-current bormowings are delermined using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and are based on cash flows discounted wsing & rate based on the bomowing
rates noted above.
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The maturity profile of loans and borrowings is 83 follows:

2019 2018

E £
Lass than one year 3819460 3018660
Between one and five years 4,481,385 3,994 455
COrwver five years 470,984 -
Total leans and bormowings 8871828 7,013,115

Bank borrowings for the company and group are sacured by the following:

First legal mortgage over the freehold property known ag Units G16, G17 and G18.
Debenture comprising fixed and fioaling charges over all the asselts and undenakings the
Parent company including all present and future freehold and leasahold property, book and
other debls chattels, goodwill both present and future.

aneral letter of pledge given by the Parent Campany.

Contact monies charge given by the Parent Companmy

Loan Postponement form given by Astral Poly Technik Limitad,

Unlimited multileteral cross company guarantee given by the Parent company and the
Subsidiary.

Company guarantee to be given by Asiral Poly Technik Limited to Secure the liabilities of the
Parent company to £1,911,500 and letter of comfort provided.
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17. Trade and other payables

Group

2019 2018
Currant £ £
Trade payables 2,730,504 2,100,330
Other payables 5,730 25,548
Accruals 411,218 274,848
Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and
borrowings, classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost 3,147 450 2490831
Corporation tax 157,838 127,392
Other taxation and social security 465,614 402 544
Total trade and other payables 4,071,003 3020767
Company

2019 2018

E E

Currant
Trade payables 2,566,671 2045034
Other payables 5,730 25 646
Accrusks 386,064 262,818
Total financial Babilities, excluding loans and
borrowings, classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost 2858485 2333598
Caorporation tax 157,828 127,392
Othar taxation and sockal securily 459,167 398 604
Total trade and other payables 3,575,561 2,855 504

The carrying value of trade and othar payables classified as financial labilities measurad at
amortised cost approximates fair value,
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20.

Deferred taxation
The movement in the dedared taxation provision during the year was:

Group and company

2019 2018

£ E
Provision brought forward 141,181 165,045
Increasal (Decreasea) in provision 1,989 (24 485)
Provision carmied forward 143,170 141,481

The Group's provision for deferred faxation consisls of the tax effect of tming differancas in
respect of

2019 2018

Provided Unprovided Provided Unprovided
Group and Company E E £ E
Excess of taxation allowances over
dapraciation an fived assels 143,170 = 141,481 =
Share capital
Group and Company
Allotted, called up and fully paid:

2019 2018
No E Mo E
X Ovdinary shares of £1 each 80 ED &0 B0
¥ Ordinary shares of £1 each 20 20 20 20
100 100 1|_Il 100

Nl

The nominal value of each share is £1 and sach class of crdinary shares carries equal mghis and
rank pari passu with each other.

Reserves

The following describes the narrative and purpose of each reserve within eguity

Faraign Exchangs Rasare

Gains and losses arising on retranstating the net assets of overseas operations into Pounds
Sterfing.

Relained Earmings

&l other nef gains and |lossas not recognised elsewheares,
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20, Reserves jcontinued

GEroUp

Balance at 1 Apnl 2018
Profit for the year

Foreign exchange reserne

Balance at 31 March 2019

Group

Balance at 1 April 2017
Profit for the year

Foreign axchange resense

Balance at 3% March 2018

Company

Balance at 1 Aord 2018
Profit for the yvear

Foraign exchange raserve

Balance at 31 March 2015

Company

Belance at 1 April 2047
Praofit for the year

Fareign exchange reserve

Balance at 31 March 2018

Fareign
exchange
reserve

£
(94,932)

51,301

{43,621)

Foreign
exchange
reserds
E
(112,271

17,329
(94,932)

Foreign
exchange
reserve
£

118,437

{36,171)
B2 266

Foraign

exchange
reserve
E

118,437
118,437

Retained
sarnings
£
2,939,138
641,781

3,580,929

Retained
sarnings
E
2,887,040

62,098

2,939,138

Retalmed
earnings
E
3,253,023

874,376

4,127,398

e T

Retained
earnings
E
3,061,022

192,001

1,253,023

In accordance with the exemplion allowed by Section 408 of the Companias Act 2008 the
company has nol presented its own profit and loss account,
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21.

Financial instruments = risk management
Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it 1o a variely of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in
market prices (including foreign exchange and interest rate risk), credit risk and bguidity risk.

Risk management is carmed out by the board of directors. The company has In place a risk
management programme that seeks io imit the adverse effects on the financial performance of
the company by monitoring levels of debt financa and the related finance costs.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised, credit worthy customers. All customers whao wish (o trade
on cradit are subject to cradit verfication checks. Customer balances are checked regularly lo
ensure thal the risk of exposure to bad dabis is minimised. The Group does not hold any security
ovar assels as collateral,

At 31 March 2018 the provision for impadrment of trade and olher receivables totalled £39 571,
At 31 March 2019, frade and other receivables tofalling £27 008 were considered past due but
not impaired. These relate o a number of independent customers for whom there s no recent
history of default

Market risk

The Group's main exposure to risk is through interest rales. The Group's inferest rate risk arises
frarm thie bormowings as disclosed in Mote 16, Where possible: the Group saeks o fix the Intarast
rates that it pays to mitigate the risk of interest rate fluciuations.

Liquidity risk

The Group has given responsibility of liquidity risk management to the board who have

formulabed Bouidily management fools fo service this requirement. Monlforing budgels and
forecasts and actual cash flows achiewa management of bquidity risk,

The maturity profile of loans and borrowings and frade and other payables is as follows:
Financial lisbdities have the following undiscounted maturity profile;
Less than1 Between1 Between 3

year and 3 years and 5 years Over 5 years
E E E £
At 31 March 2018
Loans and bormowings 3,819.460 1,082,885 3,388,490 470,984
Trade payables 2,730,504 - = =

6,649,864 1,082,885 3,308,480 470,084

Sy o e
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21, Financial instruments — risk management feontiinse

At 31 March 2018
Loans and borrowings

Trade and cther payables (excluding

non-financial liabidities)

Capital management

Less than 1 Between 1
year and 3 yaars

E E
3,018,660 &350, 001
2490831 -
5,609, 491 539,001

Between 3
and & years Ower § years
£ K
3,455 454 -
3455454 -

Tha aim of the Group i& to mainiain sulficient funds to enable if to safeguard ts absdity 1o continue
as a going concem and fo make suitable investments and incremental acquisitions whilke

providing retums for shareholders.

22, Financial instruments

a}) By category

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis
Trada recelvables

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Loans from Group undertakings
Bank barrowings
Finance leases

2019 2014
£ 2

856,184 148,880

4,338,227 3,348,894

5,184,411 3407883

20149 2014
Financial Financial

[fabilities at  Financlal liabitithes at Financkal
amortised liabilities at amortised  lishilifies &t

cost falr value cost falr valuea

E £ E £

2,730,504 - 2,490,831 -
2,940,147 - 2,032 882 -
5,711,045 - 4621418 -
220,637 - 358,815 -
115“2.433 . n.m.“ﬂ- =
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22, Financial instruments fcontinuwed)

b} Analysis of Fair values :gu 2018
£
Financial aseats
Caszh and cash equivalents B56,184 148,280
Trade and cther recaivables 4,338,227 3348893
5184411 3,457 BE3
2019 2018
Financial Financial
labilithes at abilities al
amortised amartsad
cost Falr values cost Fair valuas
E E E E
Financial llabilitles
Trade and other payables (excluding
non-financial liabilities) 2,730,604 2,730,504 2400831 2490831
Loans fram Group undertakings 2940147 2,535145 2032882 1,860,375
Bank borrowings 6,711,046 4882044 4620418 4,167,229
Finance leases 220,63T 210,441 358 815 306,490
11,602,433 10358104 0502045 8 864 B45

Financial Instruments not measured at fair value Includes cash and cash eguivalents, frade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, loans from Group undertakings, bank bormmowings

and financs leases,

Due fo their shorl term nature the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, frade and ather
recaivables and trade and other payables approximates their fair value.

For detaits of the fair value hierarchy, valusation techniques, and significant observable inpuls
refated to determining the fair value of lcans and borrowings, which are classified in leved 3 of the

fair value higrarchy, refer fo Mobte 16,
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23. Leases

Group and Company

Commitments under finance lease agresments

Future commitments under finance lease agreements are a& follows:

Amounts payable within 1 year
Amounts payable between 1 and 2 years

Less interest and finance charges rafating to future
periods
Present value of finance lease liabilities

The present value of finance lease labilities is as foliows:

Mo |ater than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

Commitments under operating leases

2049 2018

E E
127,311 201,424
83,326 180,542
220,837 381,968
{10,196} 123.161)
210 441 A58.815
2019 2018

E ¥
120,661 183,855
E5,780 174 560
210,441 358 B15

The Group leases various properfies under non-cancellable cpesating lease agreements. The
lzase terme are belween 2 and 5 years, and the majority of lease agreemeants are renewatble at
the end of the lease period at market rate. The Group also leases various vehicles, plant and

equipmant under non- cancallable lease agreements.

The lease expenditure charged to the income statement during the year is disclosed in nota 5.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

follonas.

Within 1 year
Latar than 1 year and less than 5 years

2019
£
500
500

1,000

20me
£
s00

1,000

1,500

-
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24, Related parly transactions
At the vear end, Seal It Services Limited owe the foflowing (o related parties:

2M9a 2018
E E
Astral Poly Technik Limited 2,940,147 2,032 882

The increase in amounts owed to Astral Poly Technilke Limited, the parent Company, resull from
further kaans of £218,110. Loans were made on an arm's length basis. During the year accrued
intarast charges amounted to £91,547 and repayments in the pericd amounted to £102, 382,

Details of directors' remuneration and key mansgement compensation payabie by the Group
during the parod are disclosed in Note &,

The Group entered into an incentive agreement with one of the directars which will ba payable on
26 August 201% and 256 August 2020, In the amount of £100,000 for each payment, provided
certain criteria are met, £40,000 of this has been accrued at year end.

do other transactions with related parties were undertaken such as are required o be disclosad
under 1AS 24,

25. Ultimate parent company

The immediate and ultimate parent Company is Asiral Poly Technik Lim#ed from this date,. The
consolidated resulis of Saal It Sarvices Limited are included with the Group accounts of Astral
Paoly Technik Limitad which are publicly available from Asiral Poly Technik Limited, 20779, Bh.
Rajpath Club, Off 3G Highway, Ahmeadabad.
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